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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS AND COLLEAGUES:

Nashua performed well in 2004, and delivered significantly improved profitability compared to 2003.
This increase is the result of a modest growth in sales, steady margins and reduced costs. The lower costs
were achieved by increased efficiency through process improvements and capital purchases, and reduced
expenses associated with “legacy” issues. Nashua enters 2005 in a strong financial position.

Throughout 2004, Nashua continued to pursue the strategy we have had in place for five years, to
reduce costs and streamline operations while focusing on:

o Building customer relationships by developing, acquiring and delivering high-quality products and

services,
o Investing strategically in higher-margin businesses where we see greater opportunities for growth,

° Resclving legacy issues that in the past have affected our profitability and occupied an inordinate
amount of management’s time, and

o Pursuing non-commodity business opportunities where Nashua can clearly add value.
Our 2004 performance reflects the success of this strategy.

We are pleased with our 2004 results, which were achieved in the face of challenging industry conditions,
and intend to build on this momentum. As 2005 progresses, we will continue to vigorously pursue our
strategy by secking to reduce costs, a process that is now ingrained in our culture. At the same time, we
will pursue our objective to build value for shareholders by becoming an even more valued supplier to
our customers as we develop and deliver unique high quality products and services, while exploiting new
opportunities in a disciplined way.

[ believe Nashua can achieve these goals. We have a knowledgeable, dedicated and experienced team
that’s working very hard and effectively to execute our strategy. It’s a privilege for me to be a part of this
team. I can assure you that we have our eye on the ball and are committed to keeping the company
financially strong and operationally fit.

Let’s review the performance of each of our business segments for 2004:

Speciaity Paper Products
Specialty Paper Products had sales of $168 millicn and a pre-tax profit of $6.2 million in 2004.

Specialty Paper is our largest segment and consists of two main business operations — Paper Converting
and Paper Coating, Paper Converting converts and sells various kinds of point of sale (POS) and business
information paper products and ink ribbons for use in POS and credit card systems, ATMs, and other
applications, and wide-format reprographic papers. Paper Coating produces thermal, carbonless, dry
gum and heat seal products for a wide range of business printer applications.

The Paper Converting business improved its sales in 2004 as the Dietzgen line of wide-format products,
and our IBM-branded, thermal, financial, and fraud prevention product lines, fueled increased growth.
Positive expense control, productivity gains enabled by new equipment, and expanded sales offset a
decline in gross margin percentage, which was driven by our more commodity-based products.



The emergence of new products in our Paper Converting lineup, such as wide-format, and the emphasis
on fraud prevention and IBM-branded products, together with the utilization of the Internet to enhance
customer service, have been essential in enabling Converting to overcome generally weak conditions in
the paper converting market.

Our Dietzgen brand, wide-format product business, acquired in 2002, is an example of how changes
have contributed to the Converting business. Nashua perceived a growth opportunity in this niche business
that provides specialized products for professionals including architects, designers and engineers.
The management of Nashua’s Converting group believed that the reprographic marketplace would
welcome a strong, independent converter willing to compete with the major Original Equipment
Manufacturers in the marketplace, and that there was an opportunity to significantly grow the business
from the 2002 $6 million per year base. In December 2003, Nashua augmented the product through the
acquisition of the Magellan line of wide-format graphic products and also made a small asset purchase
intended to widen our midwestern base.

This succession of carefully orchestrated acquisitions, coupled with thoughtful investments in equipment
and diligent work on processes, confirmed the Converting team’s foresight as Nashua’s wide-format sales
reached $23 million for 2004. We believe further growth — along with positive cash flow and profitability
— can be achieved in 2005, Nashua made a further investment in wide-format in 2004 with the purchase
of land and a new building at our Tennessee campus that will provide for more efficient operations and
future growth.

Other areas in which Nashua has opportunistically made calculated investments in promising businesses
include the decision to offer IBM-branded products, fraud prevention and financial products, such as
offset printed ATM receipts. Each of these affords Nashua an opportunity to grow in businesses where
we have distinct advantages and collectively these businesses are helping Nashua succeed.

The Coating operation had an improved year in 2004 as Nashua realized the benefit of 2003 cost-
containment initiatives, launched new thermal products for the industrial and gaming markets, and
increased thermal film sales. These factors offset lower sales from the higher-profit, but more mature,
dry gum and heat seal product lines and the market trend toward commoditization of thermal products.

Driving new thermal applications into the marketplace while seeking to continue to lower costs are the
key components of our plans for Coated in 2005,

Label Products

Label Products had sales of §104.3 million and a pre-tax profit of §7.6 million in 2004. This segment,
which prints and converts products for the supermarket, food service, retail, transportation, entertainment,
and general industrial markets, had an excellent year as sales and record earnings significantly exceeded
2003 results, and margins improved for the year overall. However, some margin erosion in the more
commodity-oriented portions of the label business, such as supermarket and EDP labels, occurred in
the fourth quarter. Plans are in place to address this situation through ongoing cost containment, the
use of different materials and higher selling prices.

As with other Nashua businesses, the Label segment’s positive performance is the result of both disciplined
equipment and cost containment initiatives undertaken over the last several years on the one hand, and
the introduction of new products, services and enhanced processes on the other.

While the Label team is working to improve performance in its existing businesses, it also is working to




ready Nashua’s entry into the Radio Frequency Identification — or RFID — labeling arena. RFID labels
are made up of a printed antenna and a chip placed on a substrate film material. Together, the antenna,
chip and film material form an “inlet,” which is inserted between the finished label and the liner or carrier
to complete an RFID label — or “smart” label. As inventory or components move through manufacturing
and distribution channels, special readers automatically read the data encoded into each RFID tag, thus
providing a mechanism for improved inventory tracking and management.

Nashua has taken an important step in the RFID market by installing inlet-insertion equipment in our
Tennessee facility. We anticipate shipping RFID products in volume in the second half of 2005.

New product development remains a vital part of our strategy for the Label segment. The Label$Dollars
coupon concept, developed in conjunction with PromoEdge, enables supermarkets to issue coupons
printed on the face of a label for immediate redemption. Label$Dollars has grown from an idea into a
product that’s now being utilized by a major supermarket chain and is being tested in other chains.

imaging Supplies/Toner Products

Our Imaging Supplies, or Toner, segment had net sales of $22.1 million and a pre-tax loss of approxi-
mately $200,000 in 2004. The primary business for Toner is making supplies for printers and copiers
manufactured by Ricoh, IBM, Océ N.V. and Xerox Corporation.

This was a difficult year for Toner with both sales and pre-tax profit lower than the prior year. A relatively
small business, Toner’s results are particularly susceptible to changes in market conditions or in the buying
decisions of a small number of customers. While the Toner team met many of its objectives and intro-
duced seven new toners and two new resins in 2004, a large customer’s decision to reduce purchases
and adjust inventory in the fourth quarter weakened Toner’s performance for the year. Rising costs for
materials and legal costs for defense against patent lawsuits are issues that Toner faces in 2005.

Plans for improving operations include stringent cost-control measures and building on the encouraging
sales momentum of recently introduced products. A potentially positive development was the signing of
a contract for the sale of the 100-year-old Toner facility in Nashua, New Hampshire. While financing
contingencies exist in the contract that have yet to be satisfied, we are hopeful that the sale will be
concluded in 2006. We continue to closely monitor Toner’s operations.

A Record of Success

Nashua is succeeding in a difficult environment. Nashua has been profitable, healthy and growing,
Our resources are well matched to demand, our balance sheet is stronger than it has been for many
years, and during the past several years we have concluded on favorable terms a number of tax,

environmental, employee benefit, legal and other “legacy” issues that have been disruptive to our
overall business performance.

For the last five years we have followed a well-defined and consistent strategy that blends disciplined
cost cutting, opportunistic niche acquisitions, divestitures, and prudent investments in plant and equip-
ment. The six acquisitions made in recent years have added sales volume in high-value, higher-growth
proprietary products, and improved market share and/or aided our participation in markets where we
already had established positions. We are well positioned to adapt this disciplined approach and use our
improved financial base and liquidity to pursue larger complimentary acquisitions. We will consider
such acquisitions prudently and only in situations where we believe that we can achieve significant cost
consolidation and further lower Nashua’s cost platform. The Converted Paper and Label businesses, in



particular, offer opportunities for cost consolidation and product enhancement. We enter 2005 stream-
lined, focused and with a goal to continue our efforts to deliver increased shareholder value.

As 2005 progresses, we will continue to review our current businesses to insure that they fit our sfrategic
framework, are making progress toward achieving revenue growth, customer satisfaction, quality and
cost control goals, and will be predicted to make an appropriate contribution to improved overall
performance and the growth of sharcholder value that will logically ensue. At the same time, we will
continue to consider alternatives or will seek to exit any business that does not match this profile.

Building on Success

Nashua has recorded a long list of accomplishments over the last five years. Along the way, the Nashua
team has showed ingenuity, integrity and determination, and consequently we believe that we are well
positioned to take advantage of emerging opportunities. We’ve accomplished much, but there is still
much to do. As we move through 2005 we will work aggressively to:

* Maintain a solid financial position and leverage that position to continue enhancing our value
proposition,

* Demonstrate an increase in operating earnings in each business unit, while reducing corporate
€Xpenses year Over year, ‘

* Expand and deepen our business relationships with our customers and business partners,

* Make appropriate investments in the equipment, information systems, resources and research that
enhance our processes and reduce our cost structure,

* Maximize shareholder return by creating a stronger, more focused company that is consistently
profitable,

» Continue to adhere to the best corporate practices,
* Continue to seek out value-oriented investors to broaden Nashua’s investor base, and
* Remain open to new opportunities to increase shareholder value.

We recognize that 2005 will be a success only if profitability continues to be achieved and top line
growth attained.

Cotleone /4 Qbhed—

Andrew B. Albert
Chairman, President

and Chief Executive Officer
March 11, 2005
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PART I

Item 1. Business
General

Nashua Corporation is a manufacturer, converter and marketer of labels, specialty papers and imaging
products. Qur primary products include thermal and other coated papers, wide-format papers, pressure-
sensitive labels and tags, transaction and financial receipts and toners and developers for use in certain
photocopiers.

Our company was incorporated in Massachusetts in 1904. We changed our state of incorporation to
Delaware in 1957 and back to Massachusetts in 2002. Our principal executive offices are located at 11
Trafalgar Square, Nashua, New Hampshire 03063, and our telephone number is (603) 880-2323. Our
Internet address is www.nashua.com. Copies of our Exchange Act reports can be accessed from our
website. We are subject to the informational requirements of the Exchange Act, and, accordingly, file
reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Such
reports, proxy statements and other information can be read and copied at the public reference facilities
maintained by the Securities and Exchange Commission at the Public Reference Room, 450 Fifth Street,
NW, Washington, D.C. 20549. Information regarding the operation of the Public Reference Room may be
obtained by calling the Securities and Exchange Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Securities and
Exchange Commission maintains a website (http://www.sec.gov) that contains material regarding issuers
that file electronically with the Securities and Exchange Commission. References in this Form 10-K to
“us,” “we,” “ours,” the “company” or to “Nashua” refer to Nashua Corporation and our consolidated
subsidiaries, unless the context requires otherwise.

Operating Segments

Set forth below is a brief summary of each of our three operating segments together with a
description of their more significant products, competitors and operations. Our three operating segments
are:

(1) Label Products
(2) Speciaity Paper Products
(3) Imaging Supplies

Additional financial information regarding our business segments is contained in Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7 of Part I, and
Note 13 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. :

Label Products Segment

Our Label Products segment converts, prints and sells pressure-sensitive labels and tags to distributors
and end-users.

Nashua pressure-sensitive labels and tags are used for supermarket scales, retail shelf tags, inventory
control, tracking, automatic identification, event tickets and address labels. We are a major supplier of
labels to the supermarket industry and our labels are also used for such applications as retail shelf, ticket
media, transportation, automatic data collection (barcode), mailer/package distribution and pharmaceuti-
cal and prescription fulfillment. The label industry is price-sensitive and competitive and includes
competitors such as Moore-Wallace, a division of R. R. Donnelly and Sons, Hobart Corporation and
Corporate Express, as well as numerous regional converters.

We depend on outside suppliers for most of the raw materials used by our Label Products segment to
produce labels and ticket media. Primary materials used in producing cur products include laminated
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paper and inks. Thermal paper constitutes a large percentage of the raw material cost for our and our
competitors’ products. As a result, our costs and market pricing are heavily impacted by changes in
thermal paper costs. We purchase materials from multiple suppliers and believe that adequate quantities of
supplies are available. However, for some important raw materials, such as laminated paper and inks, we
either sole source or obtain supplies from a few vendors. There is no current or anticipated supply
disruption but a future supply disruption could negatively impact our operations until an alternate source of
supply could be qualified. Additionally, there can be no assurance that our future operating results would
not be adversely affected by either future increases in the cost of raw materials or sourced products or the
curtailment of supply.

During the third quarter of 2001, we discontinued our lamination business within our Label Products
segment. In connection with this discontinuance, we entered into a supply agreement for laminated and
coated products with The Fasson Roll North America division of Avery Dennison that committed us to
purchase a significant portion of the laminated materials from them through December 31, 2005. If we fail
to meet the minimum purchase volumes specified in the agreements, we will be subject to financial
penalties. We acquired the required quantities and were in compliance with the requirements of the
agreement for 2004.

Specialty Paper Products Segment

Our Specialty Paper Products segment coats, converts, prints and sells papers and films. Products
include: thermal papers, dry-gummed papers, heat seal papers, wide-format media papers, carbonless
papers, small rolls, financial receipts, retail consumer products and ribbons.

Thermal papers develop an image upon contact with either a heated stylus or a thermal print head.
Thermal papers are used in point-of-sale printers, package identification systems, gaming and airline
ticketing systems, medical and industrial recording charts and for conversion to labels, We coat and sell
large roll thermal papers primarily to printers, laminators and converters. Competitors in the large roll
thermal papers market include companies such as Appleton Papers, Inc. and Ricoh Corporation, as well as
other manufacturers in the United States, Asia and Europe.

Dry-gummed paper is a paper that is coated with a moisture-activated adhesive. We sell dry-gummed
paper primarily to fine paper merchants, business forms manufacturers and paper manufacturers, who
ultimately convert it into various types of labels and stamps. Our major competitor in the dry-gummed
label market is Troy Laminating and Coating, Inc.

Our heat seal papers are coated with an adhesive that is activated when heat is applied. We sell these
products through fine paper merchants who, in turn, resell them to printers who convert the papers into
labels for use primarily in the pharmaceutical industry. Heat seal papers are also used in bakery, meat
packaging and other barcode applications.

Carbonless paper is a coated paper used in the production of multi-part business forms which produce
multiple copies without carbon paper. We coat and sell carbonless paper in sheet form through fine paper
merchants and in roll form directly to the printing industry, where it is converted into multi-part business
forms. Within the carbonless paper market, we generally compete with Appleton Papers, Inc.,
MeadWestvaco Corporation and Imation Corporation.

Small rolls of bond, carbonless and thermal papers are used for such applications as point-of-sale
receipts for cash registers and credit card verification, financial receipts for ATM, teller systems and check
processing, adding machine papers, and self-service applications, such as gas station pay-at-the-pump,
casino/gambling and thermal facsimile for thermal fax printers. We sell converted small rolls to fine paper
merchants, paper distributors, superstores, warehouse clubs, resellers and end-users. Small roll brands
include Perfect Print and IBM. Our major competitors in the small roll market include NCR Corporation,
Paper Systems, Inc. and Moore-Wallace, a division of R. R. Donnelly and Sons.

Wide-format media papers are premium quality papers untreated or treated with either resin or non-
resin coatings. We sell wide-format media papers to merchants, resellers, print-for-pay retailers and end-

3



users for use in graphic applications, signs, engineering drawings, posters and for the reproduction of
original copies. OQur primary competitor in the wide-format papers market is Océ N.V.

We depend on outside suppliers for the raw materials used by our Specialty Paper Products segment.
Primary raw materials include paper, chemicals used in producing the various coatings that we apply, inks
and ribbons. Paper constitutes a large percentage of the raw material cost for our and our competitors’
products. As a result, our costs and market pricing are heavily impacted by changes in paper costs.
Generally, we purchase materials from multiple suppliers. However, we purchase some raw materials for
specific coated product applications from a single supplier. While there is no current or anticipated supply
disruption, a future supply disruption could negatively impact our operations until an alternate source of
supply could be qualified. There can be no assurance that our future operating results would not be
adversely affected by future increases in either the cost of raw materials or sourced products or the
curtailment of supply.

Several of the products in our Specialty Paper Products segment are in mature and declining markets.
These include our dry-gummed papers, heat seal papers, bond papers and carbonless papers. Future sales
and profitability for these product lines depend on our ability to maintain current prices and retain and
increase our market share in these declining markets. We believe the market for thermal and wide-format
papers will continue to grow in the foreseeable future.

Imaging Supplies Segment

Our Imaging Supplies segment manufactures and sells consumable products used in producing hard
copy images. Our product line is comprised primarily of high quality, competitively priced toners and
developers compatibie with printers and copiers manufactured by Xerox Corporation, Ricoh Corporation,
Océ N.V,, IBM and others. In addition, this segment is vertically integrated in that it produces some of
the resins that are used in the production of toners for both internal use as well as for sales to some
external customers.

We market our products worldwide under both the Nashua brand and select private labels. We sell
our products through a variety of distribution channels. For example, we sell toner and developer to
government agencies, machine service providers and print-for-pay customers through both direct and agent
sales forces. We have also aligned ourselves with strategic partners who market our Ricoh compatible
toner and developer products in complementary market segments. While sales for our Imaging Supplies
segment represent less than ten percent of our consolidated sales, this segment has a significant customer
that represents more than half of its sales. The loss of this customer would have a material adverse effect
on this segment.

Our major competitors for toner and developer products include Xerox Corporation, Ricoh
Corporation, Océ N.V. and IBM. We also compete with other smaller independent manufacturers of toner
and developer products. The market for toner and developer products is highly competitive, with more
sophisticated toner formulas and shorter copier machine life cycles requiring timely product development.

We depend on outside suppliers for most of the raw materials used by our Imaging Supplies segment.
One of our major raw materials is resin, which is an oil-based product that is susceptible to oil price
fluctuations. Generally, we purchase assorted custom raw materials from multiple suppliers and believe
that adequate quantities of supplies are available. However, we purchase some raw materials from single
source suppliers. As such, while we are not currently aware of the existence of a disruption of a vendor’s
business or our relationship with them that could significantly impact our operations, such a disruption in
the future could negatively impact our operations until an alternative supplier could be qualified. There can
be no assurance that our future operating results would not be adversely affected by future increases in raw
material prices or the curtailment of supply. During 2002, we outsourced our toner filling operation and
rely on third-party suppliers to complete this portion of our manufacturing process at a reduced cost
compared to our prior internal cost. As such, disruption of toner filling supply from one or more vendors
could negatively impact our operations until an alternative supply could be arranged. The third-party filling
operations are currently satisfying our requirements.




Information About Major Customers

We have cne group of customers under common control that represents more than ten percent of our
consolidated revenues. Combined sales to Wal-Mart and Sam’s Club totaled $33.1 million in 2004, or
approximately 11 percent of our total sales in 2004, comprised of sales of $20.5 million for our Specialty
Paper Products segment and $12.6 million for our Label Products segment. While no other customer
represented ten percent of our consolidated revenues, each of our segments has significant customers. The
loss of a significant customer could have a material adverse effect on us or our segments.

Development of New Products

Cur success depends in part on our ability to continue developing and marketing new products. There

“can be no assurance that we will be able to develop and introduce new products in a timely manner or that
new products, if developed, will achieve market acceptance. Additionally, our future growth depends on
our ability to penetrate new markets and to sell our products at times through alternative channels of
distribution. There can be no assurance that the markets currently being served by us will continue to
grow, that our existing and new products will meet the requirements of the markets in which we operate,
that our products will achieve customer acceptance, that our competitors will not force prices to an
unacceptably low level or take market share from us, or that we can achieve or maintain profits in the
markets in which we operate.

Intellectual Property

Qur ability to compete may be affected by our ability to protect our proprietary information, as well
as our ability to design products outside the scope of our competitors’ intellectual property rights. We hold
a limited number of U.S. and foreign patents, of which two are related to our Label Products segment, 13
are related to our Specialty Paper Products segment and six are related to our Imaging Supplies segment,
expiring in various years between 2005 and 2021. There can be no assurance that our patents will provide
meaningful protection, nor can there be any assurance that third parties will not assert infringement claims
against us or our customers in the future. If one of our products was ruled to be in violation of a
competitor’s intellectual property rights, we could be required to expend significant resources to develop
non-infringing alternatives or to obtain required licenses. There can be no assurance that we could
successfully develop commercially viable alternatives or that we could obtain necessary licenses.
Additionally, litigation relating to infringement claims could be lengthy or costly and could have an
adverse material effect on our financial condition or results of operations regardless of the outcome of the
litigation.

Manufacturing Operations
We operate manufacturing facilities in the following locations:
o Nashua, New Hampshire
> Merrimack, New Hampshire
o Omaha, Nebraska
o Jefferson City, Tennessee
o Morristown, Tennessee
o Vernon, California
o St. Louis, Missouri
QCur New Hampshire, Nebraska and California facilities are unionized. We completed multi-year

labor negotiations for our New Hampshire and Nebraska sites during 2002 and our California site during
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2005. More information regarding the operating segments and principal products produced at each location
can be found below in Item 2 of Part I of this Form 10-K. There can be no assurance that future
operating results will not be adversely affected by changes in either our or market labor wage rates or
productivity.

Research and Development

Our research and development efforts have been instrumental in the development of many of our
products. We direct our research efforts primarily toward developing new products and processes and
improving product performance, often in collaboration with customers. Gur research and development
efforts are focused primarily on new thermal coating applications for our Specialty Paper and Label
Products segments and new toner and developer formulations and toner cartridge designs for our Imaging
Supplies segment. Our research and development expenditures were $2.1 million in 2004, $2.5 million in
2003 and $3.1 million in 2002.

Environmental Matters

We and our competitors are subject to various environmental laws and regulations. These include the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, as amended by the Superfund
Amendments and Reauthorization Act, commonly known as “CERCLA,” the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, commonly known as “RCRA,” the Clean Water Act and other state and local counterparts
of these statutes. We believe that our operations have operated and continue to operate in compliance with
applicable environmental laws and regulations. Nevertheless, we have received notices of alleged
environmental violations in the past and we could receive additional notices of alleged environmental
violations in the future. Violations of these environmental laws and regulations could result in substantial
fines and penalties. Historically, we have addressed and/or attempted to remedy any alleged environmental
violation upon notification.

Our expenditures for compliance with environmental laws and regulations were $.1 million in 2004,
$.4 million in 2003 and approximately $1.0 million per year in the previous three years. Additionally, for
sites which we have received notification of the need to remediate, we have assessed our potential liability
and have established a reserve for estimated costs associated with the remediation. At December 31, 2004,
our reserves for potential environmental liabilities were $.4 million for continuing operations. However,
liability of potentially responsible parties under CERCLA and RCRA is joint and several, and actual
remediation expenses at sites where we are a potentially responsible party could either exceed or be below
our current estimates. We believe, based on the facts currently known to us, our insurance coverage and
the environmental reserve recorded, that our estimated remediation expense and on-going costs of
compliance with environmental laws and regulations are not likely to have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations, capital expenditures or our competitive place in the
market.




Executive Officers

Listed below are our executive officers as of March 1, 2005. No family relationships exist among our
executive officers. ‘

Name Age Position

Andrew B. Albert .................. 539  Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

John L. Patenaude ................. 55  Vice President — Finance, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer

Margaret S. Adams ................ 49  Vice President, Chief Information Officer and
President of the Converted Paper Division

Robert S. Amrein.................. 50  Vice President, General Counsel and
Clerk/Secretary

Margaret M. Callan ................ 38  Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting
Officer A

Donna J. DiGiovine . ............... 43 Vice President, President of the Toner Products
Division and the Coated Paper Division

Thomas R. Pagel .................. 48  Vice President, President of the Label Products
Division

Mr. Albert has been our Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer since
December 2000. He became our President and Chief Operating Officer in April 2000 when we completed
our acquisiticn of Rittenhouse Paper Company. Prior to joining us, Mr. Albert served as Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of Rittenhouse Paper Company.

Mr. Patenaude has been our Vice President — Finance and Chief Financial Officer since May 1998.
In addition, since August 2000 and from May 1998 to October 1999, Mr. Patenaude has served as
Treasurer. »

Ms. Adams has been one of our Vice Presidents since May 2002 and Chief Information Officer since
October 2001. She has also served as President of our Converted Paper division since August 2003. Prior
to joining Nashua, she served as Vice President of Operations for Kriticka from June 2000 to May 2001
and Vice President, Information Technology for Esselte from June 1998 to June 2000. Prior to June 1998,
Ms. Adams held various marketing, operational and information technology positions at Avery Dennison,
the most recent being Group Director of North American Technology.

Mr. Amrein has been one of our Vice Presidents, General Counsel and Clerk/Secretary since
December 2000 and was Vice President — Human Resources from May 2002 to November 2004. Prior to
joining Nashua, he served as Chief Legal Counsel for M/A-Com, Inc. from 1997 to 2000 and as General
Counsel and Corporate Secretary of Schneider Automation from 1988 to 1997.

Ms. Callan has been our Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting Officer since May 2003. She
served as our Director of Strategic Planning and Analysis from January 2001 to May 2003 and our
Director of External Reporting from November 1998 to January 2001.

Ms. DiGiovine has been one of our Vice Presidents since December 1999. She has also served as
President of our Coated Paper division since August 2003 and President of our Toner Products division
since December 1999. From April 1999 to August 2003, she served as the General Manager of the Toner
Products division.

Mr. Pagel has been one of our Vice Presidents and President of our Label Products division since
February 2001. He became President of our Tennessee Label operation in April 2000 when we completed
our acquisition of Rittenhouse Paper Company. Prior to joining Nashua, Mr. Pagel served as President and
Chief Operating Officer of Rittenhouse Paper Company’s Label Media Group.

Our executive officers are generally elected to their offices each year by our Board of Directors shortly
after the Annual Meeting of Stockholders.



Employees

We had 906 full-time employees at February 10, 2005. Approximately 274 of our employees are
members of one of several unions, principally the Paper, Allied Industrial, Chemical and Energy Workers
International Union. We believe our employee relations are satisfactory.

Our significant labor agreements include:
Approximate #

of Employees

Union Covered Location Expiration Date
Paper, Allied Industrial, Chemical and

Energy Workers International Union . ... 103 Omaha, NE March 31, 2007
Paper, Allied Industrial, Chemical and

Energy Workers International Union . . .. 120 Merrimack, NH  April 2, 2006
United Commercial Fcod Workers Union . . 43 Vernon, CA March 5, 2008
Other....... ... .. . i 8 Merrimack, NH  April 2, 2006

Forward-Looking and Cautionary Statements

Information we provide in this Form 10-K may contain forward-locking statements, as defined in the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We may also make forward-looking statements in other
reports we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, in materials we deliver to stockholders and
in our press releases. In addition, our representatives may, from time to time, make oral forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements provide current expectations of future events based on certain
assumptions and include any statement that is not directly related to historical or current fact. Words such
as “anticipate,” “believe,” “can,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “project,”
“should,” “will” and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ
materially from those anticipated. Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, our future
capital needs, stock market conditions, the price of our stock, fluctuations in customer demand, intensity of
competition from other vendors, timing and acceptance of our new product introductions, general economic
and industry conditions, delays or difficulties in programs designed to increase sales and improve
profitability, the settlement of tax issues, the possibility of a final award of material damages in our
pending litigation and other risks detailed in this Form 10-K and our other filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. We assume no obligation to update the information contained in this Form 10-K
or to revise our forward-looking statements.
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Risk Factors

The following important factors, among others, could cause our actual operating results to differ
materially from those indicated or suggested by forward-looking statements made in this Form 10-K or
presented elsewhere by management from time to time.

We face significant competition.

The markets for our products are highly competitive, and our ability to effectively compete in those
markets is critical to our future success. Our future performance and market position depend on a number
of factors, including our ability to react to competitive pricing pressures, our ability to lower manufacturing
costs and consolidate production facilities, our ability to introduce new value added products and services




to the market and our ability to react to the commoditization of products. Our performance could also be
impacted by external factors, such as:

o increasing pricing pressures from competitors in the markets for our products;

o a faster decline than anticipated in the more mature, higher margin product lines, such as heat seal
and dry gum products, due to changing technologies;

o our ability to pass on raw material price increases to customers; and
° our ability to capture market share in the radio frequency identification label market.

Our Imaging Supplies and Specialty Paper Products. segments operate in New Hampshire, which has
relatively higher labor and utility costs compared to other parts of the United States where some of our
competitors are located or operate. Some of our competitors may be larger in size or scope than we are,
which may allow them to achieve greater economies of scale on a global basis or allow them to better
withstand periods of declining prices and adverse operating conditions.

In addition, there has been an increasing trend among our customers towards consolidation. With
fewer customers in the market for our products, the strength of our negotiating position with these
customers could be weakened, which could have an adverse effect on our pricing, margins and profitability.

Increases in raw material costs ov the unavailability of vaw matevials may adversely affect our
profitability.

We depend on outside suppliers for most of the raw materials used in our business. Although we
believe that adequate supplies of the raw materials we use are available, any significant decrease in
supplies, or any increase in costs or a greater increase in delivery costs for these materials could result in a
decrease in our margins, which would harm our financial condition. For example, our Specialty Paper
Products and Label Products segments are impacted by the economic conditions and the plant capacity
dynamics within the paper industry. In general, the availability and pricing of commodity paper such as
uncoated face sheet is affected by the capacity of the paper mills producing the products. During 2004, we
believe paper manufacturers were operating at an increased rate of capacity, which caused increases in the
costs of the raw materials used in our business. Further increases in the level at which paper
manufacturers, or other producers of the raw materials we use in our business, operate could cause
increases in the costs of raw materials, which could harm our financial condition.

We have historically been able to pass on significant raw material cost increases through price
increases to our customers. Nonetheless, our results of operations for individual quarters can and have been
negatively impacted by delays between the time of raw material cost increases and price increases in our
products. Additionally, we may be unable to increase our prices to offset higher raw material costs due to
the failure of competitors to increase prices and customer resistance to price increases. Additionally, we
rely on our suppliers for deliveries of raw materials. If any of our suppliers were unable to deliver raw
materials to us for an extended period of time, there is no assurance that our raw material requirements
would be met by other suppliers on acceptable terms, or at all, which could have a material adverse effect
on our results of operation. .

Declining retarns in the investment povifolio of our defined benefit plans will require us to increase cash
contributions to the plans.

Funding for the defined benefit pension plans we sponsor is determined based upon the funded status
of the plans and a number of actuarial assumptions, including an expected long-term rate of return on
assets and the discount rate. As of December 31, 2002, we froze benefits under two of these pension plans:
the Nashua Corporation Retirement Plan for Salaried Employees and the Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan. Due to declining returns in the investment portfolio and the discount rate of our defined
benefit pension plans in recent years, the defined benefit plans were underfunded as of December 31, 2004
by approximately $17.9 million, based on the actuarial methods and assumptions utilized for purposes of
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FAS 87 and after giving effect to the planned curtailment of benefits. As a result, we expect to experience
an increase in our future cash contributions to our defined benefit pension plans. We do not expect to
make a contribution in 2005. In the event that actual results differ from the actuarial assumptions, the
funded status of cur defined benefit plans may change and any such deficiency could result in additional
charges to equity and against earnings and increase our required cash contributions. Additionally,
legislative changes were recently proposed in the U.S. Congress that, if enacted into law, would impact our
defined benefit pension plans by altering the manner in which liabilities are determined for the purpose of
calculating required pension contributions and the timing and manner in which required contributions to
underfunded pension plans would be made. The proposals are still in the early stages and many details will
need to be specified, and then approved by Congress. However, the funding requirements for our defined
benefit pension plans could be significantly affected by these proposed changes, if they are adopted.

Our future results may be adversely affected by receiving fewer savings from our corporate initiatives
than expected,

During the past five years, we have pursued a strategy to reduce costs, streamline operations and
resolve legacy issues that in the past have affected our profitability, and we believe that our results for
2004 reflect the success of this strategy. However, there can be no assurance that all of the estimated
savings from these initiatives will be realized. Although we currently expect to achieve our goals, we may
encounter unanticipated difficulties in implementing our initiatives.

We are dependent on key personnel and on the retention and recruiting of key personnel for our future
Success.

Our future success depends to a significant extent on the continued service of our key administrative
manufacturing, sales and senior management personnel. However, our strategy to reduce costs, streamline
operations and resolve legacy issues may adversely impact our workforce. We do not have employment
agreements with our executives and do not maintain key person life insurance on any of these executives.
The loss of the services of one or more of our key employees could significantly delay or prevent the
achievement of our product development and other business objectives and could harm our business. While
we have entered into executive severance agreements with many of our key employees, there can be no
assurance that the severance agreements will provide adequate incentives to retain these employees. Our
future success also depends on our continuing ability to attract, retain and motivate highly skilled
employees for key positions. There is competition for qualified employees in our industry. We may not be
able to retain our key employees or attract, assimilate or retain other highly qualified employees in the
future.

We have from time to time in the past experienéed, and we expect to continue to experience from
time to time in the future, difficulty in hiring and retaining highly skilled employees with appropriate
qualifications for certain positions.

New technologies or changes in consumer preferences may affect our ability to compete successfully.

We believe that new technologies or novel processes may emerge and that existing technologies may
be further developed in the fields in which we operate. These technologies or processes could have an
impact on production methods or on product quality in these fields. For example, we believe that a trend
in the label business is the conversion of barcode labels used in warehousing and distribution into radio
frequency identification (RFID) labels. Accordingly, we instalied inlet insertion equipment for RFID
labels in the first quarter of 2005 and we continue to invest in technology and equipment that should allow
us to print and convert RFID labels. However, the widespread use and acceptance of RFID labels cannot
be assured.

Unexpected rapid changes in employed technologies or the development of novel processes that affect
our operations and product range could render the technologies we utilize, or the products we produce,
obsolete or less competitive in the future. Difficulties in assessing new technologies may impede us from
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implementing them and competitive pressures may force us to implement these new technologies at a
substantial cost. Any such development could materially and adversely impact our revenues or profitability,
or both.

Additionally, the preferences of our customers may change as the result of the availability of
alternative products or services, which could impact consumption of our products.

QOur strategy to acquire complementary businesses and to divest non-strategic businesses could cause our
JSinancial results to fluctuate and could expose us to significant business risks.

An important aspect of our business strategy is to make strategic acquisitions of businesses that
complement our Label and Converting businesses and will expand our customer base and markets,
improve distribution efficiencies and enhance our technological capabilities. Acquisitions could result in the
consolidation of manufacturing plants. We also intend to divest businesses that are not core to our future
growth and profitability. These acquisitions, potential plant consolidations and divestitures could cause our
financial results and cash flows to fluctuate. Financial risks from potential acquisitions include the use of
our cash resources and incurring debt and liabilities. Further, there are possible operational risks including
difficulties in assimilating and integrating the operations, products, technology, information systems and
personnel of acquired businesses; the loss of key personnel of acquired businesses; and difficulties honoring
commitments made to customers of the acquired businesses prior to the acquisition. There also exists a
potential risk of increased direct and indirect costs associated with labor discontent relative to a plant
consolidation strategy. Such costs could impact our financial results and our ability to successfully
implement plant consolidations. The failure to adequately address these risks could adversely affect our
business.

We may be involved in litigation relating to our intellectual property vights, which may have an adverse
impact on our business.

We rely on patent protection, as well as a combination of copyright, trade secret and trademark laws,
nondisclosure and confidentiality agreements and other contractual restrictions to protect our proprietary
technology. Litigation may be necessary to enforce these rights, which could result in substantial costs to
us and a substantial diversion of management attention. If we do not adequately protect our intellectual
property, our competitors or other parties could use the intellectual property that we have developed to
enhance their products or make products similar to ours and compete more efficiently with us, which could
result in a decrease in our market share..

While we have attempted to ensure that our products and the operations of our business do not
infringe on other parties’ patents and proprietary rights, our competitors and other parties may assert that
our products and operations may be covered by patents held by them. In addition, because patent
applications can take many years to issue, there may be applications now pending of which we are
unaware, which may later result in issued patents upon which our products may infringe. If any of our
products infringe a valid patent, we could be prevented from selling them unless we obtain a license or
redesign the products to avoid infringement. A license may not always be available or may require us to
pay substantial royalties. We also may not be successful in any attempt to redesign any of our products to
avoid infringement. Infringement and other intellectual property claims, regardless of merit or ultimate
outcome, can be expensive and time-consuming and can divert management’s attention from our core
business.

Our information systems ave critical to our business, and a failure of those systems could materially
harm us.

We depend on our ability to store, retrieve, process and manage a significant amount of information.
If our information systems fail to perform as expected, or if we suffer an interruption, malfunction or loss
of information processing capabilities, it could have a material adverse effect on our business.
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Compliance with changing regulation of corporate governance and public disclosure may result in
additional risks and expenses.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure,
including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, new SEC regulations and New York Stock Exchange rules, are
creating uncertainty for companies such as ours. These new or changed laws, regulations and standards are
subject to varying interpretations in many cases and, as a result, their application in practice may evolve
over time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies, which could result in continuing
uncertainty regarding compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure
and governance practices. We are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance and
public disclosure. As a result, our efforts to comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards have
resulted in, and are likely to continue to result in, increased general and administrative expenses and
management time and attention. In particular, our efforts to comply with Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley
and the related regulations regarding our required assessment of our internal controls over financial
reporting and our external auditors’ audit of that assessment has required the commitment of significant
financial and managerial resources. While the SEC has recently announced a one-year extension for non-
accelerated filers for compliance with Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley, which will require us to begin to
comply with the Section 404 requirements for our fiscal year ending December 31, 2006 instead of our
fiscal year ending December 31, 2005, we still expect our compliance efforts to require the continued
commitment of significant resources. Additionally, if our efforts to comply with new or changed laws,
regulations and standards differ from the activities intended by regulatory or governing bodies, our
reputation may be harmed and we might be subject to sanctions or investigation by regulatory authorities,
such as the SEC. Any such action could adversely affect our business and the market price of our stock.

Item 2. Properties

All of our manufacturing facilities are located in the United States. We believe that our
manufacturing facilities are in good operating condition and suitable for the production of our products.
We have excess manufacturing space in some locations. Qur corporate offices are located in a leased
facility in Nashua, NH. The lease for our corporate offices expires on May 31, 2011.

Our principal facilities are listed below by industry segment, location and principal products produced.
Except as otherwise noted, we own each of the facilities listed.
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Principal Properties
Tetal Square

Location _ Footage Nature of Products Produced
Corporate
Nashua, New Hampshire (leased) .. 5,600(1) none (corporate offices)
Park Ridge, [llinois (leased) ....... 3,000(1) none (administrative offices)
Specialty Paper Products Segment
Nashua, New Hampshire (leased) .. 3,000(1) none (administrative offices)
Merrimack, New Hampshire....... 475,000(2)  coated paper products
Jefferson City, Tennessee.......... 198,000 converted paper products
Morristown, Tennessee (leased) .. .. 80,000 converted paper products
Vernon, California (leased)........ 61,000 converted paper products
Park Ridge, Illincis (leased) ....... 8,000(1) none (corporate and administrative
offices)
Plymouth, Massachusetts (leased) .. 7,600 none (sales and administrative offices)
Kent, Washington (leased) ........ 10,060 none (warehousing)
Label Producis Segment
Omahe, Nebraska................ 170,000 label products
Jefferson City, Tennessee.......... 60,000 label products
St. Louis, Missouri (leased) ....... 33,000 label products
San Francisco, California (leased) .. 1,600 none (administrative offices)
Imaging Supplies Segment
Nashua, New Hampshire.......... 203,000 dry toner and developer products
Merrimack, New Hampshire....... 112,000 dry toner and developer products

(1) Our Specialty Paper Products segment and corporate étaﬂ' share approximately 11,000 square feet of
office space in Park Ridge, IL and 8,000 square feet of office space in Nashua, NH.

(2) Our Speciaity Paper Products segment utilizes approximately 315,000 square feet and the remaining
space is leased to third parties.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In August and September 1996, two individual plaintiffs filed lawsuits in the Circuit Court of Cook
County, Illinois against us, Cerion Technologies, Inc., certain directors and officers of Cerion, and our
underwriter, on behalf of all persons who purchased the common stock of Cerion between May 24, 1996
and July 9, 1996. These two complaints were consolidated. In March 1997, the same individual plaintiffs
joined by a third plaintiff filed a Consolidated Amended Class Action Complaint. The consolidated
complaint alleged that, in connection with Cerion’s initial public offering, the defendants issued materially
false and misieading statements and omitted the disclosure of material facts regarding, in particular,
certain significant customer relationships. In October 1997, the Circuit Court, on motion by the
defendants, dismissed the consolidated complaint. The plaintiffs filed a Second Amended Consolidated
Complaint alleging similar claims as the first consolidated complaint seeking damages and injunctive relief.
On May 6, 1998, the Circuit Court, on moticn by the defendants, dismissed with prejudice the Second
Amended Consolidated Complaint. The plaintiffs filed with the Appellate Court an appeal of the Circuit
Court’s ruling. On November 19, 1999, the Appeliate Court reversed the Circuit Court’s ruling that
dismissed the Second Amended Consolidated Complaint. The Appellate Court ruled that the Second
Amended Consolidated Complaint represented a valid claim and sent the case back to the Circuit Court
for further proceedings. On December 27, 1999, we filed a Petition with the Supreme Court of Illinois. In
that Petition, we asked the Supreme Court of Illinois to determine whether the Circuit Court or the
Appellate Court is correct. Cur Petition was denied and the case was sent to the Circuit Court for trial.
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Discovery has been completed, but no date has been set for trial and pre-trial motions. On October 8,
2003, the Circuit Court heard motions on a Summary Judgment motion and a class action certification
motion. The Circuit Court has not yet ruled on these motions. We believe that the lawsuit is without merit
and will continue to defend ourselves in this matter. We also believe that we will receive the value of our
37.1 percent ownership in the Cerion Liquidating Trust which was valued at $.9 million on an after-tax
basis at December 31, 2004. Our investment in Cerion is included under other assets in our Consolidated
Balance Sheet.

In December 2002, we eliminated the availability of certain postretirement health benefits to union
and non-union employees of Nashua who had at least 10 years of service and chose to retire between
age 60 to 65 which provided access to health benefits until age 65. The unions in New Hampshire
objected to the action and filed a grievance. The final step of the grievance process is arbitration by the
American Arbitration Association. The subject of the Arbitration was the interpretation of the collective
bargaining contract language which we believe allows modification of the eligibility of those postretirement
health benefits. The unions’ position is that regardless of the contract wording, these benefits cannot be
eliminated without bargaining with the unions. The Arbitration hearing occurred on July 28, 2003 and the
arbitrator ruled in favor of the unions on October 24, 2003. On November 24, 2003, we filed an appeal of
the arbitration decision with the U.S. District Court for the District of New Hampshire. We believe the
arbitrator erred in his decision process and in December 2004 we filed briefs supporting our position with
the U.S. District Court. We anticipate the complete appeals process could take years.

On May 30, 2003, Ricoh Company, Ltd. and affiliated companies filed a suit in the U.S. District
Court for the District of New Jersey against several defendants, including the largest customer of our
Imaging Supplies segment and another company who is a supplier to the Imaging Supplies segment. The
Complaint alleged multiple counts of patent infringement, trademark infringement, and unfair competition
by the defendants. On October 17, 2003, Ricoh amended the Complaint and added us as an additional co-
defendant in the suit. The allegations arose from the sale and distribution of Ricoh compatible toner
products. We filed an answer to the Complaint in December 2003. The suit is in the discovery phase. The
parties have filed various motions, including summary judgment motions, and are awaiting rulings from the
court. No trial date has been set. We believe we have valid defenses and potential recourse against certain
other co-defendants in this matter.

On November 5, 2004, Océ North America Inc. and Oc€ Printing Systems GmbH filed a Complaint
for patent infringement against us in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Illinois. Océ did
not serve the initial Complaint on us. On March 3, 2005, Océ filed the First Amended Complaint in the
U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Illinois. The First Amended Complaint was served on us
on March 3, 2005. With our outside counsel, we are reviewing the First Amended Complaint and will
respond appropriately. Our attorneys continue to evaluate the matter and develop our legal defenses.

On November 12, 2004, Sandra Hook, a former employee, filed suit in Chancery Court for Jefferson
County, Tennessee claiming discrimination related to the ending of her employment with us in November
2003 and seeking damages in excess of $1.2 million. We believe Ms. Hook’s claims to be without merit
and intend to defend the case vigorously. '

We are involved in certain environmental matters and have been designated by the Environmental
Protection Agency, referred to as the EPA, as a potentially responsible party for certain hazardous waste
sites. In addition, we have been notified by certain state environmental agencies that some of our sites not
addressed by the EPA require remedial action. These sites are in various stages of investigation and
remediation. Due to the unique physical characteristics of each site, the technology employed, the
extended timeframes of each remediation, the interpretation of applicable laws and regulations and the
financial viability of other potential participants, our ultimate cost of remediation is difficult to estimate.
Accordingly, estimates could either increase or decrease in the future due to changes in such factors. At
December 31, 2004, based on the facts currently known and our prior experience with these matters, we
have concluded that it is probable that site assessment, remediation and monitoring costs will be incurred.
We have estimated a range for these costs of $.4 million to $1.0 million for continuing operations. These
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estimates could increase if other potentially responsible parties or our insurance carriers are unable or
unwilling to bear their allocated share and cannot be compelled to do so. At December 31, 2004, our
accrual balances relating to environmental matters were $.4 million for continuing operations. Based on
information currently available, we believe that it is probable that the major potentially responsible parties
will fully pay the costs apportioned to them. We believe that our remediation expense is not likely to have
a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

We are invelved in various other lawsuits, claims and inquiries, most of which are routine to the
nature of our business. In the opinion of our management, the resolution of these matters will not
materially affect us.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Eguity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Secuvities

Our common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol
“NSH.” As of December 31, 2004, the number of record holders of our common stock was 887. The
following table sets forth the high and low sales price per share for our common stock as reported by the
New York Stock Exchange for each period indicated.

Ist 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter  Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2004
High ... $9.04 $9.75  $11.20 $11.65 $11.65
oW o e $8.20 $8.25 $9.09 $10.23 § 820
2003
High ... . e $9.02 $948 $950 $9.08 $ 950
LW ot e $8.65 $8.73 $675 $793 8675

Our ability to pay dividends is restricted to $.6 million under the provisions of our debt agreement,
without the prior approval of our lenders. We did not declare or pay a cash dividend on our common stock
in 2004 or 2003 and do not currently intend to pay dividends.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data(1)

Nashua Corporaticn and Subsidiaries

Five-Year Financial Review

December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2600

(Im thousands, except per share data, number of
employees and percentages)

Operations(2)
Nt SAlES ..ttt e e e $289,217  $288,906  $283,190  $272,510  $253,122
GTOSS MArgin PErCENTAZE . ...ttt vviuitrtre it iaiinansaranans 18.6% 18.6% 19.8% 20.5% 20.1%
Selling, distribution, general and administrative expenses as a percentage

Of SAlES . .ttt e e 15.6% 16.5% 16.9% 18.3% 19.5%
Income before interest and income taxes as a percentage of sales(3) .... 2.5% 0.5% 1.9% —_ 5.9%
Income (loss) before income taxes as a percentage of sales(3)......... 2.1% 0.1% 1.4% (1.0)% 5.1%
Income (loss) as a percentage of sales(3) ...........cvveuievinnnnn 1.3% 0.0% 8% (0.9)% 2.1%
Effective tax provision (benefit) rate . .............ciiiiiieiian., 38.5% 53.4% 39.5% (12.0)% 58.3%
Income (loss) before income taxes(3) .....c.vvirineriniininrennnns $ 6158 § 219 $ 3,828 $ (2,782) §$ 12914
Net income (1085) (3) oottt it it $ 3787 § 102 $ 2316 § (2,448) $ 5,386
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share:

BasiC. . .t e $ 063 $§ 002 $ 040 $ (043) $ 0595

Diluted . . ... e e $ 062 $ 002 $ 039 $ (043) $ 095
Financial Position(2)
Working capital. . ... ...t e e $ 31,662 § 22296 $ 21,011 § 16,528 § 22,531
TOtAl @SSELS « v v v v ettt e n et e e e $150,960 $151,676 $146,188 $145,046 $170,471
Non-current portion of long-termdebt ............cooiviinineien.. $ 27,350 $ 24200 $ 23,000 § 23280 § 35905
Total long-term obligations .. ...... ... .. ..ot $ 28673 § 27468 $ 27,079 § 25,740 § 46,171
Total capital employed. . ... ..ottt e $ 96,698 $ 88,797 §$ 87,018 § 95677 $118,048
Total debt as a percentage of capital employed ...................... 31.8% 31.1% 28.7% 26.4% 38.7%
Shareholders’ equity . ... vvuutt i it $ 65948 $ 61,197 $ 62,018 $ 70,397 § 72,337
Shareholders’ equity per common share .............. ... $ 1062 §$ 1037 $ 1066 $ 1232 §$ 1279
Other Selected Datz(2)
Investment in plant and equipment (excluding acquisitions) ........... $ 6599 8§ 4307 $ 4349 $ 2,375 $§ 9,625
Depreciation and amortization .............ccvoiiiiiiiiiiii $ 7900 § 7942 $ 7581 § 9,748 § 9,304
Dividends per common share ............ocviiniiniiiiiiiiii e, — — —_ —  § 01
Return (loss) on average sharcholders’ equity ....................... 6.0% 0.2% 35% (3.4)% 7.7%
Common stock price range:

High . e e $ 1165 $ 950 $ 1020 $§ 7.85 § 1031

P $ 820 $ 675 § 540 $ 306 $ 356

Year-end closing Price ... ... v vt e $ 1136 $ 850 $ 878 $§ 587 $ 444
Number of employees from continuing operations .................... 906 929 1,026 971 1,140
Average common shares outstanding . .............c i 6,209 5,869 5,783 5,696 5,649

(1) See Note 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for Selected Quarterly Financial Data required under Item 302 of
Regulation S-K.

(2) See Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of business changes relevant to this data.
(3) Net income (loss) includes:
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Dollars % Sales Dollars % Sales Dollars % Sales Dollars % Sales Dollars % Sales
(Dollars in millions)

Restructuring and other unusual
(income) charges ........... — — $C.D 0% $(.1) 1% $3.0 .1% §$ 1.0 4%

" Net (gain)/loss on settlement/
curtailment of postretirement
plans.............. ..o $(1.0) 0% $1.6 1% $(2) 1% — — — —

Pension settlement income. ..... — —_ — — — — — _— $18.6 7.3%
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Our Management Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunction with Item 1: Business;
Item 6: Selected Financial Data; and Item §: Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Overview

Throughout 2004, we continued to pursue our strategy of top line growth, margin enhancement and
cost reduction through streamlining operations by focusing on:

o Building shareholder value,

e Building customer relationships by developing, acquiring and delivering high-quality products and
services,

 Investment in equipment and processes which increase efficiencies and lower our cost structure,
= Investing strategically in higher-margin businesses where we see greater opportunities for growth,

» Resolving legacy issues that in the past have affected our profitability and occupied an inordinate
amount of time, and

» Opportunistically pursuing non-commodity business where we can clearly add value.

Our results for 2004 refiect the success of this continued strategy even as we have coped with
fluctuating material costs, overcapacity in the paper coating and converting and toner markets, and pricing
pressure in some of our more commoditized product lines. As we proceed into 2005, we believe our
strategies are sound and our finances are strong.

As 2005 progresses, we will continue to review all elements of our current businesses to insure that
they fit our strategic framework, are making progress towards improved performance and are progressing
towards their appropriate contributions to the growth of shareholder value. As we have done in the past
five years, we are open to alternatives and opportunities that create shareholder value which may include
strategic acquisitions and investments as well as divesting businesses that are not core to our future growth
and profitability.

Our net sales increased slightly to $289.2 million in 2004 compared to $288.9 in 2003. Our gross
margin percentage remained unchanged at 18.6 percent in 2004 and 2003. Our selling and distribution
expenses decreased $2.1 million and our administrative expenses decreased $.6 million in 2004. Our Label
Products and Specialty Paper Products segments both operated profitably in 2004 and improved
profitability over the prior year. Our income before income taxes increased from $.2 million in 2003 to
$6.2 miliion in 2004. These financial results are further discussed in the Consolidated Results of
Operations.

Our 2004 results incorporate contributions from our acquisitions. The principal acquisitions consist of
the April 2002 acquisition of the assets of Computer Imaging Supplies, known as CIS, used in the fraud
prevention business, the June 2002 acquisition of certain assets of Dietzgen LLC, used in the wide-format
business, and the February 2003 acquisition of the assets of The Label Company, a supplier of
supermarket, promotional and product identification labels. These acquisitions expanded our product lines,
increased our customer base and helped us increase plant utilization.

Our results for 2004 were positively impacted by cost reduction measures taken during 2003.

We remain focused on profitable sales and providing our customer base with higher value products
and services. We will also continue our focus on cost containment initiatives, investments that make our
business more efficient and pursue technologies, such as radio frequency identification products, or RFID,
which are of growing importance to our customer base. We installed inlet insertion equipment for RFID
Iabels in the first quarter 2005. As reflected in our 2004 results, we continue to opportunistically address
legacy issues.
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During 2004, we experienced the following significant developments:

» In December 2004, we purchased property consisting of land and building contiguous to our
Jefferson City, Tennessee campus to be utilized for manufacturing by our Specialty Paper Products
segment. We expect to move our wide-format manufacturing from Morristown, Tennessee to
Jefferson City, Tennessee in the second quarter of 2005, The acquisition was financed by the
issuance of industrial revenue bonds by the Industrial Revenue Board of Jefferson City, Tennessee,
which is supported by an irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of $2.8 million issued by our
lenders. Proceeds in excess of the cost of the building will be utilized to retrofit the building and
purchase equipment utilized in Jefferson City, Tennessee.

+ In December 2004, we executed a purchase and sale agreement with Southern New Hampshire
Services to sell our land and buildings located in Nashua, New Hampshire for $2.0 million. The
proposed transaction is expected to close by June 2006. The agreement is subject to the potential
buyer’s ability to obtain financing.

+ During the fourth quarter of 2004 our strategic agreement with Parlex Corporation expired in
accordance with its terms. We are in the process of negotiating cross-licensing agreements for use
of the press printed circuit technology by both parties.

+ During the third quarter of 2004 we recognized a $.9 million non-cash pre tax gain related to the
transfer of the liability for retiree death benefits to Minnesota Life, a subsidiary of Securian
Financial Group. As part of the transaction, Minnesota Life has assumed the liability for, and the
administration of, death benefits for approximately 580 of our retirees. The agreement was effective
October 1, 2004 and included a $2.4 million one-time premium payment to Minnesota Life.

During 2003, we experienced the following significant developments:

« In December 2003, we acquired the assets of the Magellan wide-format graphics product line from
PM Co. L.L.C. This acquisition was consistent with our strategy of adding value with new products
and services that leverage our converting and distribution capabilities. Operating activity relating to
this product line is reported in our Specialty Paper Products segment.

« In November 2003, we acquired the assets of the supermarket label product line from Zebra
Technologies, Inc. The supermarket label business markets and distributes pressure sensitive direct
thermal labels used solely for marking prepackaged meat, produce, deli and bakery items in
supermarkets, grocery and convenience stores. Operating activity relating to this product line is
reported under our Label Products segment.

» Our 2003 results were negatively impacted by a fourth quarter one-time, non-cash charge of
$1.6 million related to postretirement healthcare benefits for union employees located in New
Hampshire. In December 2002, we eliminated a postretirement healthcare benefit for all employees
retiring after December 31, 2002. The benefit provided employees who had 10 years of service and
retired at age 60 or older with access to medical insurance through age 65. In 2002, we recognized
a $1.6 million non-cash gain for the termination of this postretirement healthcare benefit for hourly
union employees located in New Hampshire. The unicns subsequently filed a grievance against the
termination of the postretirement healthcare benefits for union employees which was heard by an
arbitrator in July 2003. The arbitrator ruled in favor of the unions on October 24, 2003, and we
subsequently appealed the arbitrator’s opinion in the U.S. District Court in New Hampshire on
November 24, 2003. After filing the appeal of the arbitrator’s ruling, we held unsuccessful
discussions with the unions in an attempt to resolve and mitigate the impact of the arbitrator’s
ruling. Our appeal is currently pending.

+ In connection with workforce reductions in 2003, we incurred severance charges of $1.6 million
which were offset by approximately $2.1 million of same year savings. These workforce reductions
reflect our initiatives to streamline processes and control costs.
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¢ [n the fourth quarter of 2003, we incurred a one-time $330,000 charge related to the settlement of
future obligations under an employment contract in which we were required to fund a split dollar
life insurance policy on behalf of our Chief Executive Officer, Andrew Albert. Future funding of
these types of insurance policies is now prohibited under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. As part of the
agreement, Mr. Albert repaid Nashua $313,000 for insurance premiums previously paid by us.
Therefore, the settlement had a negligible impact on our cash flow.

s In February 2003, we entered into a strategic agreement with Parlex Corporation to cooperate in
the development of flexible circuit technology incorporating proprietary printing and plating
technologies. The agreement created an organization, Stratos Technology, LLC, of which we owned
50 percent, that drew on both parties’ relative expertise in ink and printed circuit technology, label
converting and the design, application and production of flexible circuits. Under the agreement,
Stratos Technology worked to develop innovative products for use in the automotive and cellular
markets.

» In February 2003, we acquired the assets and assumed certain liabilities of The Label Company
from Bunzl Distribution and signed a multi-year agreement to supply Bunzl with label products.
The Label Company had primarily been a supplier of supermarket, promotional and product
identification labels mainly for Bunz! and other customers. The acquisition added flexibility to our
label manufacturing operations, provided additional volume to our coating facility within our
Specialty Paper Products segment and enhanced our relationship with a valued and long-standing
customer. The Label Company had 2002 sales of approximately $9.0 million. Operating activity
relating to the assets of The Label Company is reported under our Label Products segment from
the date of acquisition.

During 2002, we experienced the following significant developments:

+ During the fourth quarter of 2002, we recorded a non-cash charge of $11.4 million to shareholders’
equity because as of December 31, 2002, the accumulated benefit obligations of our company-
sponsored pension plans exceeded the fair value of the assets of the plans due to declines in the fair
market value of equities held by the plans and decreases in our expected return on plan assets and
discount rate resulting from current economic trends. This charge was net of $7.5 million in tax
benefits, which are included in other assets and reflect an increase in our deferred tax assets.

o During the fourth quarter of 2002, we reached an agreement with the Appeals office of the United
States Internal Revenue Service regarding the outstanding proposed assessment of federal income
tax for the years 1992 to 1994 as more fully discussed in Note 7 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

o In October 2002, our Board of Directors approved changes to The Nashua Corporation Retirement
Plan for Salaried Employees, The Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and postretirement
benefit plans, which were effective as of December 31, 2002. As a result of these changes, we
recognized a gain of $2.7 million related to the elimination of certain benefits related to our retiree
medical and death benefit plans and a gain of $.2 million from the buy out of a portion of existing
retirees’ death benefits, largely offset by a loss of $2.7 million related to freezing benefits provided
by the salaried pension plans. This excluded the gain related to the buy out of additional existing
retirees’ death benefits, which was completed in the first quarter of 2003. Employees impacted by
the freeze in pension benefits are eligible to participate in Nashua’s profit sharing plan beginning in
2003. Profit sharing contributions must be approved by our Board of Directors and are discretionary.

o In June 2002, we completed our shareholder-approved reincorporation from Delaware to
Massachusetts. The reincorporation eliminated certain restrictions on our ability to borrow funds
and our new corporate charter increased shareholder rights and reduced our corporate expenses. In
connection with our reincorporation, our authorized capital was reduced from 40 million shares of
common stock and 2 million shares of preferred stock, each with a par value of $1 per share, to
20 million shares of common stock, par value $1 per share. As part of the reincorporation, the
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1,023,068 shares of common stock held in treasury were retired with their cost above par value
allocated on a pro rata basis against additional paid-in capital and retained earnings.

¢ In June 2002, we acquired out of bankruptcy some of the assets of Dietzgen LLC, including
trademarks, trade names, customer lists and certain equipment and inventories. Dietzgen, an after-
market provider of wide-format digital media and imaging supplies for the architectural, engineering
and construction markets, filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code on
January 31, 2002. Operating activity relating to the assets acquired from Dietzgen is reported as
part of our Specialty Paper Products segment from the date of acquisition.

» During the first quarter of 2002, we entered into a three-year secured financing agreement with
LaSalle Bank, NA and Fleet National Bank. This agreement provides us with a revolving line of

- credit of up to $30 million and a term loan of $10 million as more fully described in Note 5 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements included in [tem 8 of Part I of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

« In April 2002, we acquired the assets of CIS, a privately held manufacturer and marketer of
security and fraud prevention products for the point-of-sale transaction industry and of inkjet and
toner cartridges. The products of CIS include multi-color ribbons and specialized inks that prevent
unauthorized duplication of cash register receipts. Operating activity relating to the assets acquired
from CIS is reported as part of our Specialty Paper Products segment from the date of acquisition.

Consolidated Results of Operations

The consolidated results of operations should be read in conjunction with the individual segment results.

Percent Change

2004 vs. 2003 vs,
2004 2003 2002 2003 2002

(In millions)

Net sales
Label Products ..........ooiiiiiiiniiinenninnn s, $104.3 $101.8  $100.8 2.5 1.0
Specialty Paper Products. ......................... 168.0 169.0 160.7 (0.6) 5.2
Imaging Supplies .........c.oiiviiiiiiii i 22.1 235 24.0 (6.0) 2.1)
Eliminating ........ ... ... i (5.2) (5.4) (2.3) — —
Consolidated Net Sales . ............ ...t 289.2 288.9 283.2 0.1 2.0
Gross margin .
Label Products . ...........iiiiiiiiiiii i, 18.8 17.3 17.9 8.7 (3.4)
Specialty Paper Products............. ...l 31.2 31.9 32.6 (2.2) 2.1)
Imaging Supplies ..........oi i 3.9 4.6 5.6 (15.2) (17.9)
Consolidated Gross margin . ...........ovveveennn.. 53.9 53.8 56.1 0.2 4.1y
Gross Margin % ......oueiiinnenn i 18.6% 18.6% 19.8% — —
Selling and distribution expenses ..................... 25.1 27.2 28.1 (7.7) (3.2)
General and administrative expenses . ................. 20.1 20.6 19.8 (2.4) 4.0
Research and development expenses .................. 2.1 2.5 3.1 (16.0) (19.4)
Net loss (gain) on settlement/curtailment of pension and
postretirement benefits.............. ... ... .. (1.0) 1.6 (.2) — —
Loss from equity investments . ....................... 4 5 1 (20.0) —
Restructuring and other unusual (income) charges...... — D 1) — —
Interest expense, Nt . .........coitinenneiiniannnan 1.0 1.3 1.5 (23.1) (13.3;
Income before income taxes . ........................ 6.2 2 3.8 3,0000 (9%4.7)
Netineome . .. ..ottt i $ 38 $ 1§ 23 37000 (95.7)




Cur net sales were $289.2 million in 2004, an increase of $.3 million compared to $288.9 million in
2003 and an increase of $5.7 million from 2003 compared to $283.2 million in 2002.

» The increase from 2003 to 2004 was primarily due to increased sales in our Label Products
segment, which was partially offset by decreases in our Specialty Paper Products segment and in
our Imaging Supplies segment.

o The 2.0 percent increase from 2002 to 2003 was primarily due to increased sales in our Specialty
Paper Products and Label Products segments partially offset by a slight decrease in sales in our
Imaging Supplies segment.

o Net sales for each of our business segments is discussed in detail below under “Results of
Operations by Reportable Operating Segment.”

Our gross margin was $53.9 million in 2004 compared to $53.8 million in 2003 and $56.1 million in
2002. Our operating gross margin percentage remained unchanged at 18.6 percent in 2004 and 2003 and
decreased from 19.8 percent in 2002.

= The margin percent in 2004 compared to 2003 improved in our Label Products segment and
decreased in both our Specialty Paper Products and Imaging Supplies segments.

o The margin percent decrease from 2002 to 2003 was a result of lower margins in all of our
segments. The $2.3 million decrease in gross margin in 2003 was due primarily to an unfavorable
product mix, pricing pressures, and volume declines within some of our product lines.

» Gross margin for each of our business segments is discussed in detail below under “Results of
Operations by Reportable Operating Segment.”

Selling and distribution expenses decreased to $25.1 million in 2004 compared to $27.2 million in
2003 and $28.1 million in 2002. As a percent of sales, selling and distribution expenses decreased to
8.7 percent in 2004 from 9.4 percent in 2003 and 9.9 percent in 2002.

o The $2.1 million decrease from 2003 to 2004 was primarily due to decreases across each of our
segments, with $1.1 million from our Label Products segment, $.8 million from our Specialty Paper
Products segment, and $.1 million from our Imaging Supplies segment.

o In 2003, increases of $.7 million in expenses in the Specialty Paper Products segment were offset
by reductions of $.6 million in the Imaging Supplies segment and $1.0 million in the Label
Products segment compared to 2002.

o Selling and distribution expenses for each of our business segments is discussed in detail below
under “Results of Operations by Reportable Operating Segment.”

General and administrative expenses decreased to $20.1 million in 2004 compared to $20.6 million in
2003 and $19.8 million in 2002. As a percent of sales, general and administrative expenses were
6.9 percent in 2004 compared to 7.1 percent in 2003 and 7.0 percent in 2002.

¢ The decrease in 2004 compared to 2003 was driven by decreased expenses of $1.2 million in our
Specialty Paper Products segment and $.2 million in lower corporate expenses, which was partially
offset by increased expenses of $.7 million in our Label Products segment and $.2 million in our
Imaging Supplies segment. The decrease in corporate expenses in 2004 was primarily due to lower
legal expenses, rental expenses and expense pertaining to a settlement of obligations under our
Chief Executive Officer’s employment contract which more than offset increased directors’ fees
which included a cash payment in lieu of stock options, employee incentive expenses and
professiconal fees related to our review of strategic alternatives.

o The increase in 2003 compared to 2002 was driven by $1.2 million of increased expenses in our
Specialty Paper Products segment offsetting a $.3 million decrease in corporate expenses. The
decrease in corporate expenses in 2003 was primarily due to lower legal fees, training costs, staffing
and pension administration costs which more than offset a2 $.3 million expense relating to severance
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costs associated with the reduction of corporate staff and a $.3 million expense pertaining to a
settlement of obligations under our Chief Executive Officer’s employment contract.

» General and administrative expenses for each of our business segments is discussed below under
“Results of Operations by Reportable Operating Segment.”

Research and development expenses decreased to $2.1 miilion in 2004 compared to $2.5 million in
2003 and $3.1 million in 2002. As a percent of sales, research and development expenses were .7 percent
in 2004 compared to .9 percent in 2003 and 1.1 percent in 2002.

» The $.4 million decrease in 2004 compared to 2003 was primarily due to lower expenses related to
headcount reductions in our Specialty Paper Products and Imaging Supplies segments.

o The $.6 million decrease in 2003 compared to 2002 was primarily due to a shift in quality control
related costs from research and development to manufacturing in our Specialty Paper Products
segment,

» Research and development expenses for each of our business segments is discussed below under
“Results of Operations by Reportable Operating Segment.”

Net interest expense declined to $1.0 million in 2004 compared to $1.3 million in 2003 and
$1.5 million in 2002. Our weighted average annual interest rate on long-term debt was 3.5 percent in 2004
compared to 3.3 percent in 2003 and 4.6 percent in 2002. Qur average balance on long-term debt
increased $3.2 million from 2003 to 2004 and increased $1.2 million from 2002 to 2003.

* The decline in net interest expense in 2004 from 2003 was primarily due to interest income related
to a 1993 interest matter with the Internal Revenue Service.

+ The decline in net interest expense in 2003 from 2002 was primarily due to lower interest rates.

During 2004, we recognized a pretax gain of $1.0 million resulting from the settlement of
postretirement death benefits. -

During 2003, we recognized a $1.6 million expense resulting from a reversal of a curtailment
adjustment related to postretirement healthcare benefits for union employees located in New Hampshire as
discussed above in the significant developments section.

During 2002, we recognized a net gain of $.2 million resulting from our decision to freeze our salaried
pension plan benefits and eliminate certain postretirement benefit plans.

Our income before income taxes was $6.2 million in 2004 compared to $.2 million in 2003 and
$3.8 million in 2002.

¢ The $6.0 million increase in our pretax income from 2003 to 2004 was mainly due to improved
profitability in our Label Products and Specialty Paper Preducts segments, as well as the gain on
the postretirement death benefits and the interest income from the 1993 interest matter, which were
partially offset by a pretax loss in our Imaging Supplies segment.

* The $3.6 million decrease in our pretax income from 2002 to 2003 was primarily due to lower
profitability in our Specialty Paper Products and Imaging Supplies segments and an incurred
expense resulting from the reversal of a curtailment adjustment related to the postretirement
healthcare benefits for union employees located in New Hampshire, which were partially offset by
higher profitability in cur Label Products segment.

Our annual effective income tax rate in 2004 was 38.5 percent and is higher than the U.S. statutory
rate principally due to the impact of state income taxes and non-deductible expenses. The decrease in the
annual effective income tax rate between 2004 and 2003 is primarily due to the impact of higher income
and deductible expenses. The increase in the estimated annual income tax rate from 2002 to 2003 is
primarily due to the impact of lower income and non-deductible expenses.

22




Net income for 2004 was $3.8 million, or $.63 per share, an increase from $.1 million, or $.02 per
share in 2003, and $2.3 million, or $.40 per share in 2002.

Resuits of Operations by Reportable Operating Seginent

Label Products Segmemnt

__Percent Change
2004 vs. 2003 vs.

2004 2003 2002 2003 2002
(In millions)
Netsales .......cooveiiiiiiiii i $104.3 $101.8 $100.8 2.5 1.0
Gross margin ......oovviiiiin i 18.8 17.3 17.9 8.7 (3.4)
Gross Margin %o . ..o.ovvev i 180%  17.0% 17.7% — —
Selling and distribution expenses.............. 6.3 7.4 8.4 (149) (11.9)
General and administrative expenses .......... 45 = 38 38 18.4 —
Other .. ... 4 3 2 333 50.0
Income from operations before interest, taxes
and unusual items . ........ ... ... ..., $ 76 § 58 § 55 31.0 5.5

Net sales for our Label Products segment increased to $104.3 million in 2004, from $101.8 million in
2003 and $100.8 million in 2002.

o The $2.5 million, or 2.5 percent increase, in 2004 compared to 2003 primarily resulted from a
$5.7 million increase in our automatic identification product line, which was partially offset by a
$1.2 million sales decline in our EDP product line, $.8 million in our supermarket scale product
line, $.6 million in the retail shelf production line, $.5 million in the inform product line, and a
$.1 million decline in other product lines. The increase in automatic identification label sales
resulted primarily from incremental business gained from a major customer. The decreased sales in
our supermarket scale product line is primarily a result of lost business which is partially offset by
incremental sales from the acquisition of the assets of The Label Company on February 7, 2003.

o The $1.0 million, or 1 percent, increase in 2003 compared to 2002 was driven by incremental
supermarket sales of $7.7 million from the acquired Label Company business, which more than
offset a decrease in sales of $5.7 million in the remaining supermarket thermal product line. The
lower supermarket thermal sales were primarily due to the loss of a major customer, as well as
continued pricing pressures due to overcapacity in the label industry. Other factors included
$2.5 million of increased sales in the automatic identification product line, offset by decreases of
$1.4 million in the EDP product line, $.7 million in the retail shelf product line, $.4 million in the
ticket product line, $.5 million in the inform product line and $.5 million in other product lines.
The increase in automatic identification label sales was the result of new business from a five-year
contract executed in the fourth quarter of 2002. The decrease in retail shelf sales was due to the
reduction of inventory by a major customer. The decrease in the ticket product line sales was
primarily due to the loss of a major cinema customer due to consolidation within the theater
industry. Our sales in the EDP product line were negatively impacted by a sluggish economy,
changing technology and lower sales to charitable organizations.

Gross margin for our Label Products segment increased to $18.8 million in 2004 compared to
$17.3 miilion in 2003 and $17.9 million in 2002. The gross margin percentage increased to 18.0 percent in
2004 compared to 17.0 percent in 2003 and 17.7 percent in 2002.

o The gross margin increase of $1.5 million in 2004 compared to 2003 was primarily due to a
favorable mix of products sold and higher sales volume as well as improved manufacturing
performance partially through the successful implementation of improved manufacturing equipment.
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» The gross margin decrease of $.6 million in 2003 compared to 2002 was primarily due to
unfavorable product mix and pricing pressures exacerbated by certain Internet auctions and the
overcapacity in the label industry, partially offset by manufacturing efficiencies and material cost
reductions.

Selling and distribution expenses for our Label Products segment declined to $6.3 million in 2004
compared to $7.4 million in 2003 and $8.4 million in 2002. As a percentage of sales, selling and
distribution expenses declined to 6.0 percent in 2004 compared to 7.3 percent in 2003 and 8.4 percent in
2002. The decrease in expenses in 2004 was primarily related to headcount reductions that occurred in
November 2003 as well as a recovery of accounts receivable which were previously reserved as
uncollectible. The decrease in expenses in 2003 resulted primarily from lower direct selling expenses and
lower distribution costs, which were partially offset by severance costs related to headcount reductions.

General and administrative expenses for our Label Products segment increased to $4.5 million in 2004
compared to $3.8 million in both 2003 and 2002. As a percent of sales, general and administrative
expenses increased to 4.3 percent for 2004, compared to 3.8 percent for both 2003 and 2002. The
$.7 million increase in expenses in 2004 compared to both 2003 and 2002 was primarily due to increased
employee incentive expenses.

Income from operations before interest, taxes and unusual items for our Label Products segment
increased to $7.6 million in 2004 compared to $5.8 million in 2003 and to $5.5 million in 2002.

We believe an upcoming trend in automatic identification is the anticipated use of radio frequency
identification (RFID) labels for marking, identifying and tracking products and materials in warehousing,
distribution and other industries. This trend is being mandated by several major retailers and by the
U.S. Department of Defense. We believe that meaningful implementation of this technology may not
occur until after 2005. We continue to invest in technology and equipment that will allow us to print and
convert RFID labels. We believe that the implementation of RFID will eventually have a significant
impact on the label markets.

We continue to invest in equipment and systems that will positively impact both our cost and
efficiencies.

Specialty Paper Products Segment

Percent Change
2004 vs. 2003 vs.

2004 2003 20062 2003 2002
(in millions)
Netsales ..o.vvereiiin i, $168.0 $169.0 $160.7 (0.6) 5.2
Gross Margin . ......ovviennnnnvinnennnnn. 31.2 31.9 32.6 2.2) (2.1)
Grossmargin % ..., 18.6% 189%  20.3% — —_
Selling and distribution expenses.............. 17.5 18.3 17.6 (4.4) 4.0
General and administrative expenses .......... 6.8 8.0 6.8 (15.0) 17.6
Research and development expenses........... J 9 1.7 (11.1)  (47.1)
Other ... .. . — 3 — — —
Income from operations before interest, taxes
and unusual items . ....... ... .. . $ 62 $ 44 §$§ 6.5 38.6 (32.3)

Our Specialty Paper Products segment reported sales of $168.0 million compared to $169.0 million in
2003 and $160.7 million in 2002.

» The $1.0 million decrease in 2004 compared to 2003 resulted from decreased sales of $2.8 million
in our bond, dry gum, carbonless, ribbon and fax paper product lines, $3.2 million in our retail
product lines, $3.2 million in our cut-sheet paper product line, $2.8 million in our ticket and tag
product lines and $.8 million in our heat seal products, which is partially offset by increased sales of
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$7.1 million in our wide-format product line, $2.9 million in our thermal product line, $1.6 million
in our financial receipt product line and $.2 million in our other product lines. The continued shift
in printing technologies in point-of-sale (POS) equipment from impact to thermal printers and
price increases due to the partial pass through of increased raw material cost to our customers
resulted in the increased sales of our thermal POS products. The increase in our wide-format
product line resulted primarily from new customer business. The decrease in retail sales was
primarily due to the temporary loss in the second quarter of a major customer, which returned
during the fourth quarter of 2004. Heat seal and dry gum are mature product lines, which continue
to decline due to technology changes. The decrease in the thermal ticket and tag product lines
results from the loss of airline ticket business. The lower cut-sheet paper products sales resulted
from the sale of our customer list and the exit of this product line during the third quarter of 2003.

o The $8.3 million increase in 2003 compared to 2002 resulted from increased sales of $10.2 million
of thermal products, $6.5 million of wide-format products and $1.7 million of our fraud prevention
products which were partially offset by a $5.7 million decrease in sales of bond, dry gum,
carbonless, ticket and tag, ribbon and fax paper products, $1.9 million decrease in sales volume of
cut-sheet paper products, $1.2 million decrease in sales of heat seal product, and a net decrease in
sales of $1.3 million of other product lines. The continued shift in printing technologies from impact
to thermal printers resulted in lower sales of bond and carbonless products and increased thermal
product sales. In addition, we gained incremental volume from an additional location from an
existing thermal customer. The increase in sales of our wide-format products resulted from the
Dietzgen product line acquired in June 2002, as well as gaining major customers during the third
quarter of 2003. The increase in the fraud prevention product sales is related to the Computer
Imaging Supplies acquisition in April 2002. The decline in the carbonless, dry gum, and heat seal
product lines was due to movement to competing technologies as these products become mature.
The movement to kiosk in the airline boarding pass market caused a decline in ticket and tag
products. The lower cut-sheet paper products sales resulted from the sale of our customer list and
the exit of this product line during the third quarter of 2003.

Gross margin for our Specialty Paper Products segment declined in 2004 to $31.2 million compared to
$31.9 million in 2003 and $32.6 million in 2002. The gross margin percentage declined to 18.6 percent in
2004 compared to 18.9 percent in 2003 and 20.3 percent in 2002.

o The gross margin percentage decline in 2004 was due primarily to decreased margins associated
with competitive pricing related to thermal products used in POS applications and face sheet sold
to laminators, lower absorption of production costs due to lower production volume in our paper
coating operation, and sales declines in the higher margin heat seal and dry gum product lines. The
rate of sales decline for these mature product lines may have an impact on the future gross margin
in this segment.

o The gross margin percentage decline in 2003 was due to an unfavorable sales mix, competitive
pricing pressure for thermal products, severance costs and workers compensation expenses. Margins
declined due to increased sales of our lower margin thermal products, lower sales in our higher
margin heat seal product line and lower absorption of production costs related to the decrease in
production volume in our paper coating business. As indicated above in the segment sales section,
mature product lines such as heat seal and dry gum, which provide significantly higher margins
than thermal products, are declining due to technological changes.

Selling and distribution expenses for our Specialty Paper Products segment decreased in 2004 to
$17.5 million compared to $18.3 million in 2003 and $17.6 million in 2002. The decrease in 2004 was
driven primarily by 2003 headcount reductions, which was partially offset by increased distribution
expenses due to higher freight cost and the increase in our wide-format product line sales which carry a
higher freight and warehousing cost structure in order to service customers on a timely delivery basis. The
increase in 2003 was driven by higher freight expenses associated with the increase in our wide-format
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sales, and a full-year impact of the Dietzgen and CIS volumes and selling expenses, which were partially
offset by other cost reductions.

General and administrative expenses for our Specialty Paper Products segment decreased in 2004 to
$6.8 million compared to $8.0 million in 2003 and $6.8 million in 2002. The decrease in 2004 was
primarily attributable to reduced employee costs from headcount reductions, which occurred in 2003. The
increase in 2003 compared to 2002 was primarily due to increased expenses associated with the two
acquired product lines and severance costs due to headcount reductions.

Research and development expenses decreased in 2004 to $.7 million from $.9 million in 2003 and
$1.7 million in 2002. The decrease in 2004 was primarily attributable to headcount reductions, which
occurred in 2003. The decrease in 2003 compared to 2002 was primarily due to a shift in cost from
research and development to manufacturing.

Income from operations before interest, taxes and unusual items for our Specialty Paper Products
segment increased in 2004 to $6.2 million from $4.4 million in 2003 and decreased from $6.5 million in
2002. The increase in 2004 was due to lower operating expenses, which was partially offset by a reduced
gross margin., The decrease in 2003 compared to 2002 was primarily due to higher operating expenses as
well as lower sales and gross margin percentage in our coating business.

Imaging Supplies Segment

__Percent Change
2004 vs. 2003 vs.

2004 2003 2002 2003 2002
{In millions)

Netsales .....ooverivrivriirnnnenn.n. e $22.1  $23.5 $24.0 (6.0) (2.1)
Gross MAargin .. ....ovvvinieernnmeeeeenuninnn.. 39 4.6 56  (152) (17.9)
Grossmargin %o .....ccooiineiiiiin i 176% 19.6% 23.4% — —
Selling and distribution expenses................. 14 1.5 2.1 (6.7) (28.6)
General and administrative expenses ............. 1.4 1.1 1.1 27.3 —
Research and development expenses.............. 1.3 1.5 1.5 (13.3) —
Other .. ... — A — — —
Income (loss) from operations before interest, taxes

and unusual items . ....... ... .. .. i $(2) $ 4 $ 09 — (55.6)

Our Imaging Supplies segment sales were $22.1 million in 2004 compared to $23.5 million in 2003
and $24.0 million in 2002.

* The $1.4 million, or 6.0 percent, decline in sales in 2004 was driven by a decrease in sales volume
of Ricoh and Xerox compatible toners, which was partially offset by an increase in sales of Océ
compatible toners. The lower sales of Ricoh compatible toner were primarily driven by an inventory
correction by a major customer during the fourth quarter of 2004, The lower sales of Xerox
compatible toner were due to the partial loss of a major customer and the decline in more mature
products. We expect that the sales of mature products will continue to decline. The increase in Océ
compatible toner sales was due to a new product introduction in 2004.

« The $.5 million, or 2.1 percent, decline in sales in 2003 was driven by a decrease in sales volume of
Ricoh, Xerox, Océ and Kodak compatible toners, which were partially offset by an increase in sales
of IBM compatible toners and resin products. The lower volume of Ricoh, Xerox, Océ and Kodak
compatible toners resulted both from products that are nearing the end of their life cycle and
difficulties in commercializing certain toners. The increase in IBM compatible toner and resin sales
result from the addition of new customers in 2003.

-Gross margin for our Imaging Supplies segment declined to $3.9 million in 2004 compared to
$4.6 million in 2003 and $5.6 million in 2002. The gross margin percentage decreased to 17.6 percent in
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2004 compared to 19.6 percent in 2003 and 23.4 percent in 2002, The $.7 million decline in gross margin
in 2004 compared to 2003 and the $1.0 million decline in gross margin in 2003 compared to 2002 were
both primarily driven by lower sales and the unfavorable changes in our product mix. Our product mix was
negatively impacted by lower sales volume of some higher margin high-speed toners.

Selling and distribution expenses for our Imaging Supplies segment declined $.1 million from 2003 to
2004 and $.6 million from 2002 to 2003. Decreases in both 2004 and 2003 were primarily driven by lower
headcount as well as lower distribution costs.

General and administrative expenses for our Imaging Supplies segment were $1.4 million for 2004 and
$1.1 million in 2003 and 2002. The increase in 2004 was primarily due to higher legal fees associated with
the Ricoh litigation which were only partially offset by lower spending in other areas.

Research and development expenses for our Imaging Supplies segment were $1.3 million in 2004 and
$1.5 million in 2003 and 2002. The decrease of $.2 million in 2004 was mainly due to reduced material
purchases associated with product trials.

Pretax loss from operations before interest for our Imaging Supplies segment was $.2 million in 2004
compared to pretax income of $.4 million in 2003 and $.9 million in 2002.

Liquidity, Capital Resources and Financial Condition

Qur primary sources of liquidity are cash flow provided by operations and our revolving credit facility
with Lasalle Bank, NA and Fleet National Bank. Set forth below is a summary of our cash activity for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002: '

For the Years Ended

December 31,
Cash Provided by (Used in): 2004 2003 2002

(In millions)
Operating activities . ... ...ttt i i e $13 § 86 361
Investing activities. . ...t i e (5.5) (10.6) (6.0)
Financing activities . ....... ...t i i e 4.0 2.6 0
Activities of discontinued operations.............. ... ... o0 .. (0.1) (0.5) (0.1)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.................... $(03) $§ 01 §$ 0

Cash provided by operating activities

Cash flow from operations of $1.3 million in 2004 was primarily generated by favorable results of
operations in our Specialty Paper Products and Label Products segments which were partially offset by
unfavorable changes in working capital. Working capital changes were related to increased inventories in
all segments, increased accounts receivable primarily in our Specialty Paper Products segment, decreased
accounts payable primarily in our Label Products segment and decreased accrued expenses primarily due
to payments related to severance reserves accrued in 2003.

Cash flow from operations of $8.6 miilion in 2003 was generated from positive working capital
changes that included an increase in accounts payable primarily in our Label Products segment, partially
offset by increases in inventory in our Specialty Paper Products and Imaging Supplies segments.
Inventories in the Specialty Paper Products segment were higher than 2002 primarily due to the purchase
of thermal paper inventories in anticipation of price increases in the first quarter of 2004.

The cash generated by operations of $6.1 million during 2002 was primarily due to the positive results
of operations across all segments and a reduction of inventories in our Specialty Paper Products and
Imaging Supplies segments partially offset by decreases in accrued expenses and accounts payable in all of
our segments.
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Cash used in investing activities

During 2004 cash used in investing activities of $5.5 million was primarily the result of investments in
plant and equipment of $6.6 million partially offset by cash received related to the surrender of retired
executive whole life insurance policies which were replaced with term life policies. Our investment in plant
and equipment included the purchase of a manufacturing facility located in Tennessee for use by our
Specialty Paper Products segment. Capital expenditures for 2005 are expected to be in the range between
$5 million to $7 million. Funding of the projected capital expenditures is expected to be provided by
operating cash flows and cash which was generated by industrial revenue bonds issued by the City of
Jefferson City, Tennessee during December 2004 described below.

Our 2003 cash used in investing activities of $10.6 million is primarily the result of $6 million used
for the acquisition of the assets of The Label Company and the acquisition of the supermarket thermal
product line from Zebra Technologies. We also used $4.3 million for investments in plant and equipment
across all of our segments.

During 2002, the cash used in investing activities was primarily related to investments in plant and
equipment in addition to two small acquisitions including the assets of Computer Imaging Supplies and
certain assets of Dietzgen LLC.

Cash provided by and used in financing activities

In addition to cash flows from operations, we have a bank financing arrangement that allows us to
adequately finance our operations at competitive rates. We had $3.6 million of available borrowing capacity
at December 31, 2004 under our revolving loan commitment with LaSalle Bank, NA and Fleet National
Bank. At December 31, 2004, we had a $5.4 million obligation under standby letters of credit under the
credit facility which are included in our bank debt when calculating our borrowing capacity. The weighted
average interest rate on long-term debt borrowings of $27.4 million outstanding at December 31, 2004 was
3.5 percent.

In December 2004, LaSalle Bank, NA and Fleet National Bank issued an irrevocable letter of credit
for $2.8 million in support of an Industrial Development Revenue Bond issued by the Industrial
Development Board of the City of Jefferson City, Tennessee for our purchase of property and equipment
located in Jefferson City, Tennessee. The unused proceeds from the IRB are restricted to the purchase of
equipment on the Tennessee campus and for improvements to the acquired property. Unreimbursed funds
of $1.2 million are included under the caption “Restricted Cash” in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We
expect to use the unreimbursed funds by June 9, 2006.

We are party to a Credit Agreement, dated March 1, 2002, with LaSalle Bank, NA as Agent and
Issuing Bank and Fleet National Bank that, as amended, consists of a term loan of $15 million and a
revolving loan commitment of $30 million and that requires us to maintain certain financial covenants such
as total funded debt to adjusted earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, also
known as adjusted EBITDA, and a fixed charge coverage ratio. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement
are collateralized by a security interest in our accounts receivable, inventories, certain machinery and
equipment and real estate located in Merrimack, New Hampshire. We entered into a first amendment to
the Credit Agreement, effective July 15, 2003, to increase the term loan under the Credit Agreement from
$10 million to $15 million and to adjust the terms of the quarterly interest payments. We entered into a
second amendment to the Credit Agreement, effective July 24, 2003, to waive our non-compliance with
the funded debt to EBITDA ratio and the minimum EBITDA financial covenants for the quarter ended
June 27, 2003. We entered into a third amendment to the Credit Agreement, effective September 25,
2003, to replace the minimum EBITDA covenant with a minimum adjusted EBITDA covenant, and we
entered into a consent and fourth amendment to the Credit Agreement, effective December 30, 2003,
adding the provision to the funded debt to EBITDA ratio, for the computation period ended December 31,
2003 only, to be computed as the funded debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio.
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We entered into a fifth amendment to the Credit Agreement, effective March 31, 2004, and a sixth
amendment effective December 1, 2004. Together, these amendments:

o extended the term of the credit facility to February 28, 2007,

o modified the definition of fixed charge coverage ratio to provide that (1) the ratio is based on our
adjusted EBITDA and (2) payments of principal of funded debt, included in the calculation of the
fixed charge coverage ratio, are limited to the last four principal payments;

» replaced the definition and covenant relating to the total debt to EBITDA ratio with a definition
and covenant relating to the funded debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio;

o eliminated the covenant relating to minimum adjusted EBITDA,;

» adjusted the interest rate on loans outstanding under the credit facility to provide that the interest
rate is based on the funded debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio and that the interest rate is, at our
option, either (1) a range from zero to .25 percent over the base rate (prime) or (2) a range from
1.5 percent to 2.0 percent over LIBOR;

¢ modified the definitions of Revolving Outstandings and Stated Amount to include the IRB Letter of
Credit;

e adjust the letter of credit commitment amount to include the IRB Letter of Credit;

o adjust the covenants on the limitations on debt and liens to exclude the debt to the IDB and
related liens; and

= adjust the description of any non-payment of other debt to include debt arising under the
Reimbursement Agreement relating to the IRB Letter of Credit.

Under the amended Credit Agreement, we are also subject to a non-use fee for any unutilized portion
of our revolving loan that ranges from .25 percent to .375 percent based on our funded debt to adjusted
EBITDA ratio.

We were in compliance with the financial covenants and our compliance at December 31, 2004 under
the amended Credit Agreement is as follows:

December 31, 2004

Covenant Requirement Compliance
Maintain 2 fixed charge coverage ratio ........ Not less than 1.1 to 1.0 1.5 to 1.0
Maintain a funded debt to adjusted EBITDA

TAHO oottt e e e Less than 2.75 to 1.0 227 to 1.0

Furthermore, without prior consent of our lenders, the Credit Agreement limits, among other things,
the payment of dividends to $.6 million, capital expenditures to $8.0 million, the incurrence of additional
debt and restricts the sale of certain assets and merger or acquisition activities. While we were in
compliance with the above financial covenants as of December 31, 2004, should results of operations fall
short of our expectations and we fail to maintain our covenants and be unable to obtain a waiver from our
lenders, our debt could become callable by our lenders.

We have net deferred tax assets of $12.3 million on our Consolidated Balance Sheet. We expect the
tax assets to be fully utilized in the future based on our expectations of future taxable income. We expect
future cash expenditures to be less than taxes provided in the financial statements. Should taxable income
not meet our expectation in future years, tax planning with respect to the sale of real estate would provide
us sufficient taxable income to absorb unutilized tax assets. The fair market value of our real estate
significantly exceeds the book value.

As referenced in Note 12 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, we maintain defined benefit
pension plans. We were not required to fund the qualified defined benefit plans during 2004. We will not
be required to contribute to our pension plans in 2005.
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The 2004 cash payments for the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan was $.5 million. For 2005,
the estimated payments to retirees are $.3 million. The 2004 cash payments for postretirement benefits
were $.4 million. For 2003, the estimated cash payments are $.4 million.

Future obligatiors

We have operating leases primarily for office, warehouse and manufacturing space, and electronic data
processing and transportation equipment. We also have capital leases primarily for automobiles, computer
equipment and office equipment. The terms of these leases do not impose significant restrictions or unusual
obligations. Our energy-related purchase obligations consist of a fuel oil contract with an expiration date in
2005. Our obligations relating to long-term debt, notes payable, purchase obligations and leases at year-end
2004 were as follows:

Beyond
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2009 Total
(In thousands)
Term portion of long-term debt .. .... $3,400 $3400 $ 100 $— $— $ — $6900
Revolving portion of long-term debt . . . — — 21,050 — — — 21,050
Notes payable ..................... 710 250 — — — — 960
Industrial revenue bond ............. — — — — — 2,800 2,800
Energy-related purchase obligations . . . 574 — — - = — 574
Capital leases. . ...............ooit 184 84 22 — — — 290
Non-cancelable operating leases ... ... 626 505 460 346 149 166 2,252

$5,494  $4,239  $21,632 $346 $149 $2,966 $34,826

Our liquidity is affected by many factors, some based on the normal operations of our business and
others related to the uncertainties of the industry such as overcapacity and raw material pricing pressures
and global economies. Although our cash requirements could fiuctuate based on the timing of these
factors, we believe that our current cash position, cash flows from operations and amounts available under
our revolving line of credit are sufficient to fund our cash requirements.

Litigation and Other Matters

In December 1998, the IRS completed an examination of our corporate income tax returns for the
years 1992 through 1994 and issued a Notice of Proposed Adjustment, which assessed additional taxes of
$4.6 million, excluding interest. We disagreed with the positions taken by the IRS and filed a formal
protest of the proposed adjustment on January 12, 1999. On October 10, 2002, we reached an agreement
with the Appeals office of the IRS regarding the outstanding proposed assessment of federal income tax
for the years 1992 to 1994 subject to the approval of the Joint Committee on Taxation of the United
States Congress. The agreement received final approval by the Joint Committee on Taxation of the United
States Congress as indicated in a letter from the IRS Appeals Office dated December 24, 2002 and is now
final. Our agreement determined the tax liability for the period 1989 through 1994 and resuited in a net
tax refund in the amount of $.3 million for that period. The agreement impacted the earlier years due to
the carryback of tax losses and credits and the recomputation of alternative minimum taxes.

In December 1999, the IRS completed an examination of our corporate income tax returns for the
years 1995 through 1997 and issued a Notice of Proposed Adjustment which assessed additional taxes of
$5.2 million, excluding interest. This assessment represents a total of $14.0 million of adjustments to
taxable income for the years under review. The proposed adjustments relate to the deductibility of
restructuring and other reserves for continuing and discontinued operations and the utilization of foreign
net operating losses associated with discontinued operations. We disagreed with the position taken by the
IRS and filed a formal protest of their proposed adjustments on April 6, 2000.
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On October 28, 2003, the IRS completed an examination of our corporate income tax returns for the
years 1998 through 2000 and issued a Notice of Proposed Adjustment which assessed additional taxes of
$30,021 excluding interest. While the amount assessed is immaterial, we have filed a protest of the
proposed adjustment since certain adjustments proposed by the IRS for the years 1995 through 1997 could
impact the tax liability for the period 1998 through 2000.

On January 26, 2005, we executed a proposed settlement with the appeals office of the IRS for all
outstanding years, which is subject to review and final approval by the Joint Committee on Taxation. The
proposed settlement proposes final assessments for all outstanding years totaling $1.2 million before
interest.

We believe that we are adequately reserved for potential liabilities that could arise from the resolution
of the RS’ assessment for the years 1995 through 2000. While we believe that we have adequately
provided for tax liabilities through December 31, 2004, we can provide no assurances that we will prevail
in our defense against adjustments proposed in pending or future federal and state tax examinations. In
addition, we can provide no assurances that the ultimate resolution of open tax matters will not be either
in excess of or less than current reserves.

In August and September 1996, two individual plaintiffs filed lawsuits in the Circuit Court of Cook
County, Illinois against us, Cerion Technologies, Inc., certain directors and officers of Cerion, and our
underwriter, on behalf of all persons who purchased the common stock of Cerion between May 24, 1996
and July 9, 1996. These two complaints were consolidated. In March 1997, the same individual plaintiffs
joined by a third plaintiff filed a Consolidated Amended Class Action Complaint. The consolidated
complaint alleged that, in connection with Cerion’s initial public offering, the defendants issued materially
false and misleading statements and omitted the disclosure of material facts regarding, in particular,
certain significant customer relationships. In October 1997, the Circuit Court, on motion by the
defendants, dismissed the consolidated complaint. The plaintiffs filed a Second Amended Consolidated
Complaint alleging similar claims as the first consolidated complaint seeking damages and injunctive relief.
On May 6, 1998, the Circuit Court, on motion by the defendants, dismissed with prejudice the Second
Amended Consolidated Complaint. The plaintiffs filed with the Appellate Court an appeal of the Circuit
Court’s ruling. On November 19, 1999, the Appellate Court reversed the Circuit Court’s ruling that
dismissed the Second Amended Consolidated Complaint. The Appellate Court ruled that the Second
Amended Consolidated Complaint represented a valid claim and sent the case back to the Circuit Court
for further proceedings. On December 27, 1999, we filed a Petition with the Supreme Court of Illinois. In
that Petition, we asked the Supreme Court of Illinois to determine whether the Circuit Court or the
Appellate Court is correct. Our Petition was denied and the case was sent to the Circuit Court for trial.
Discovery has been completed, but no date has been set for trial and pre-trial motions. On October 8§,
2003, the Circuit Court heard motions on a summary judgment motion and a class action certification
motion. The Circuit Court is expected to rule on these motions at any time. We believe that the lawsuit is
without merit and will continue to defend ourselves in this matter. We also believe that we will receive the
value of our 37.1 percent ownership in the Cerion Liquidating Trust which was valued at $.9 million on an
after-tax basis at December 31, 2004. Our investment in Cerion is included under other assets in our
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

In December 2002, we eliminated the availability of certain postretirement health benefits to union
and non-union employees of Nashua who had at least 10 years of service and chose to retire between
age 60 to 65 which provided access to health benefits until age 65. The unions in New Hampshire
objected to the action and filed a grievance. The final step of the grievance process is arbitration by the
American Arbitration Association. The subject of the Arbitration was the interpretation of the collective
bargaining contract language which we believe allows modification of the eligibility of those postretirement
health benefits. The unions’ position is that regardless of the contract wording, these benefits cannot be
climinated without bargaining with the unions. The Arbitration hearing occurred on July 28, 2003 and the
arbitrator ruled in favor of the unions on October 24, 2003. On November 24, 2003, we filed an appeal of
the arbitration decision with the U.S. District Court for the District of New Hampshire. We believe the
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arbitrator erred in his decision process and in December 2004 we filed briefs supporting our position with
the U.S. District Court. We anticipate the compleie appeals process could take years.

On May 30, 2003, Ricoh Company, Ltd. and affiliated companies filed a suit in the U.S. District
Court for the District of New Jersey against several defendants, including the largest customer of our
Imaging Supplies segment and another company who is a supplier to the Imaging Supplies segment. The
Complaint alleged multiple counts of patent infringement, trademark infringement, and unfair competition
by the defendants. On October 17, 2003, Ricoh amended the Complaint and added us as an additional co-
defendant in the suit. The allegations arose from the sale and distribution of Ricoh compatible toner
products. We filed an answer to the Complaint in December 2003. The suit is in the discovery phase. The
parties have filed various motions, including summary judgment motions, and are awaiting rulings from the
court. No trial date has been set. We believe we have valid defenses and potential recourse against certain
other co-defendants in this matter.

On November 5, 2004, Océ North America Inc. and Océ Printing Systems GmbH filed a Complaint
for patent infringement against us in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Illinois. Océ did
not serve the initial Complaint on us. On March 3, 2005, Océ filed the First Amended Complaint in the
U.S. District Court for the Northern District Court for the Northern District of Illinois. The First
Amended Complaint was served on us on March 3, 2005. With our outside counsel, we are reviewing the
First Amended Complaint and will respond appropriately. Qur attorneys continue to evaluate the matter
and develop our legal defenses.

On November 12, 2004, Sandra Hook, a former employee filed suit in Chancery Court for Jefferson
County, Tennessee claiming discrimination related to the ending of her employment with us in November
2003 and seeking damages in excess of $1.2 million. We believe Ms. Hook’s claims to be without merit
and intend to defend the case vigorously.

We are involved in certain environmental matters and have been designated by the Environmental
Protection Agency, referred to as the EPA, as a potentially responsible party for certain hazardous waste
sites. In addition, we have been notified by certain state environmental agencies that some of our sites not
addressed by the EPA require remedial action. These sites are in various stages of investigation and
remediation. Due to the unique physical characteristics of each site, the technology employed, the
extended timeframes of each remediation, the interpretation of applicable laws and regulations and the
financial viability of other potential participants, our ultimate cost of remediation is difficult to estimate.
Accordingly, estimates could either increase or decrease in the future due to changes in such factors. At
December 31, 2004, based on the facts currently known and our prior experience with these matters, we
have concluded that it is probable that site assessment, remediation and monitoring costs will be incurred.
We have estimated a range for these costs of $.4 million to $1.0 million for continuing operations. This
estimate could increase if other potentially responsible parties or our insurance carriers are unable or
unwilling to bear their allocated share and cannot be compelled to do so. At December 31, 2004, our
accrual balance relating to environmental matters was $.4 million for continuing operations. Based on
information currently available, we believe that it is probable that the major potentially responsible parties
will fully pay the costs apportioned to them. We believe that our remediation expense is not likely to have
a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

We are involved in various other lawsuits, claims and inquiries, most of which are routine to the
nature of our business. In the opinion of our management, the resolution of these matters will not
materially affect our company.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires that we make estimates and assumptions for the reporting period and as of the financial statement
date. Our management has discussed our critical accounting estimates, policies and related disclosures with
the audit/finance and investment committee of our Board of Directors. These estimates and assumptions
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affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent liabilities and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those amounts.

Critical accounting policies are those that are important to the portrayal of our financial condition and
results, and which require us to make difficult, subjective and/or complex judgments. Critical accounting
policies cover accounting matters that are inherently uncertain because the future resolution of such
matters is unknown. We believe that our critical accounting policies include:

Accounts Receivable — Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We evaluate the collectibility of our accounts receivable based on a combination of factors. In
circumstances where we become aware of a specific customer’s inability to meet its financial obligations to
us, such as a bankruptcy filing or a substantial downgrading of a customer’s credit rating, we record a
specific reserve to reduce our net receivable to the amount we reasonably expect to collect. We also record
reserves for bad debts based on the length of time our receivables are past due, the payment history of our
individual customers and the current financial condition of our customers based on obtainable data and
historical payment and loss trends. After management’s review of accounts receivable, we decreased the
allowance for doubtful accounts to $.7 millicn at December 31, 2004 from $.9 million at December 31,
2003. Uncertainties affecting our estimates include future industry and economic trends and the related
impact on the financial condition of our customers, as well as the ability of our customers to generate cash
flows sufficient to pay us amounts due. If circumstances change, such as higher than expected defaults or
an unexpected material adverse change in a customer’s ability to meet its financial obligations to us, our
estimates of the recoverability of the receivables due us could be reduced by a material amount.

Inventories — Slow Meving and Obsolescence

We estimate and reserve amounts related to slow moving and obsolete inventories that result from
changing market conditions and the manufacture of excess quantities of inventory. We develop our
estimates based on the quantity and quality of individual classes of inventory compared to historical and
projected sales trends. Inventory values at December 31, 2004 have been reduced by a reserve of
$1.0 million, based on our assessment of the probable exposure related to excess and obsolete inventories.
Our estimated reserve was also $1.0 million at December 31, 2003. Major uncertainties in our estimation
process include future industry and economic trends, future needs of our customers, our ability to retain or
replace our customer base and other competitive changes in the marketplace. Significant changes in any of
the uncertainties used in estimating the loss exposure could result in a materially different net realizable
value for our inventory.

Goodwill

As of December 31, 2004, we had $31.5 million of recorded goodwill. Effective January 1, 2002, we
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
Under FAS 142, goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets are no longer amortized but are reviewed
annually, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise, for impairment. We have performed the annual
impairment tests required by FAS 142 and have concluded that no impairment exists as of November 5,
2004, We computed the fair value of our reporting units based on a discounted cash flow model and
compared the result to the book value of each unit. The fair value exceeded book value for each reporting
unit as of our valuation date of November 5, 2004. Significant estimates included in our valuation included
future business results and the discount rate. Material changes in our estimated future operating results or
discount rate could significantly impact our carrying value of goodwill.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

The most significant elements in determining our pension income or expense are the expected return
on plan assets and the discount rate. We assumed an expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of
8.5 percent for each of the years ended December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003. The assumed long-
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term rate of return on assets is applied to a calculated value of plan assets, which recognizes changes in
the fair value of plan assets in a systematic manner over five years. This produces the expected return on
plan assets that is included in the determination of our pension income or expense. The difference between
this expected return and the actual return on plan assets is deferred. The net deferral of past asset gains or
losses affects the calculated value of plan assets and, ultimately, our future pension income or expense.
Should our long-term return on plan assets either fall below or increase above 8.5 percent, our future
pension expense would either increase or decrease.

Each year, we determine the discount rate to be used to discount plan liabilities which reflects the
current rate at which our pension liabilities could be effectively settled. The discount rate that we utilize
for determining future benefit obligations is based on a review of long-term bonds, including published
indices, which receive one of the two highest ratings given by recognized ratings agencies. For the year
ended December 31, 2003, we used a discount rate of 6.0 percent. This rate was used to determine fiscal
year 2004 expense. For the year ended December 31, 2004 disclosure purposes, we also used a discount
rate of 6.0 percent. Should the discount rate either fall below or increase above 6.0 percent, our future
pension expense would either increase or decrease accordingly. Qur policy is to defer the net effect of
changes in actuarial assumptions and experience. As discussed in detail in Note 12 to our Consclidated
Financial Statements, we froze benefits under our salaried pension plans effective December 31, 2002.

At December 31, 2004, our consolidated pension liability was $17.9 million compared to a
consolidated pension liability of $17.1 million at the end of 2003. We recognized an incremental
comprehensive loss of $.3 million, net of a $.2 million tax benefit for 2004. We recognized pretax pension
expense of $1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to pretax pension income of
$.1 million in 2003. Future changes in our actuarial assumptions and investment results due to future
interest rate trends could have a material adverse effect on our future costs and pension obligations.

Assumed health care cost trend . rates for us have a significant effect on the amounts reported for our
health care plan. Our assumed health care cost trend rate is 7 percent for 2005 and ranges from 7 percent
to 4 percent for future years.

Deferred Tax Assets

As of December 31, 2004, we had approximately $12.3 million of deferred tax assets. During 2004
and 2003 we added deferred tax assets of $.2 million and $.9 million, respectively, associated with
minimum pension liability adjustments as discussed in detail in Note 12 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements. A portion of our deferred tax assets relates to state loss carryforwards that expire between
2004 and 2020. We have a valuation allowance of $.6 million for our state loss carryforwards. Although
realization of our deferred tax assets is not assured, management believes it is more likely than not that all
of the deferred tax asset will be realized. Significant changes in any of the estimated future taxable income
could impair our ability to utilize our deferred tax assets. Additional disclosures relating to income taxes
and our deferred tax assets are included in Note 7 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Environmental Reserves

We expense environmental expenditures relating to ongoing operations unless the expenditures extend
the life, increase the capacity or improve the safety or efficiency of our property, mitigate or prevent
environmental contamination that has yet to occur and improve our property compared with its original
condition or are incurred for property held for sale. We record specific reserves related to site assessments,
remediation or monitoring when the costs are both probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated.
We base estimates on in-house and third-party studies considering current technologies, remediation
alternatives and current environmental standards. In addition, if there are other participants and the site is
joint and several, the financial stability of other participants is considered in determining our accrual. At
December 31, 2004, we believe the probable range for future expenditures is $.4 million to $1.0 million
and have accrued $.4 million. The decline in our accruals from $.7 million at December 31, 2003 was due
to current year payments.
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Uncertainties affecting our estimates include changes in the type or degree of contamination
uncovered during assessment and actual clean-up; changes in available treatment technologies; changes in
the financial condition of other participants for sites with joint and several responsibility; changes in the
financial condition of insurance carriers financially responsible for our share of the remediation costs at
certain sites; and changes 1in local, state or federal standards or the -application of those standards by
governmental officials. We believe a material change in any of the uncertainties described above could
result in spending materially different from the amounts accrued.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 151, Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4,
Inventory Pricing (“FAS 151”). FAS 151 clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility
expense, freight, handling costs, and waste material. Such abnormal expenses must be recognized in the
period in which they are incurred. In addition, FAS 151 requires the allocation of fixed production
overhead to inventory based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. Unallocated overheads
must be recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. FAS 151 is effective for
inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005 and we do not currently
anticipate any material accounting or disclosure requirement under the adoption of this new accounting
pronouncement.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised
2004), Share-Based Payment (“FAS 123R”). This standard is a revision of FAS 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees, and its related implementation guidance. FAS 123R requires all share-based
payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial
statements based on their fair values and is effective for the first interim or annual reporting period
beginning after June 15, 2005. We expect to adopt FAS 123R on July 1, 2005, using the standard’s
modified prospective application method. Had we expensed employee stock options and employee share
purchase rights under FAS 123R for the year ended December 31, 2004, net income and diluted earnings
per share would have been reduced by $ .1 million and $0.01 per share, respectively (see Note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements). Under FAS 123R, the fair value would be amortized into
compensation expense over the vesting period of the stock options.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risks from interest rate fluctuations relating to our debt. We performed a
sensitivity analysis assuming a hypothetical 10 percent increase in interest rates for our debt as of
December 31, 2004. This analysis indicated that a 10 percent increase in interest rates would not have a
material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Actual changes in
interest rates and their impact on us could differ materially from this hypothetical analysis.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

NASHUA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per share data)

Nt SAlES oottt e e $289,217 $288,906  $283,190
Costof products sold . ...... i iiiiiii i it i i 235,345 235,101 227,102
Gross Margin . ......ovvivunrenaennnenennnens feeeeerer e 53,872 53,805 56,088
Selling and distribution exXpenses. .. .......c.coiiiierrinnernnenn.. 25,148 27,208 28,119
General and administrative expenses ...........cc.oviviviineenn. 19,985 20,560 19,720
Research and development expense .........cccoviieniiiinnnnnn., 2,126 2,469 3,139
Net loss (gain) on settlement/curtailment of pension and

postretirement plans ........... ... ... ....0 e (971) 1,599 (181)
Restructuring and other unusual income ..................c....... — (68) (88)
Loss from equity investment . ......... ..ottt iiiinnaainnn 416 523 59
Interest EXPenSE. .. oottt e e 1,323 1,295 1,494
Interest INCOME . ... .vvivtiii ettt it nenennnas (313) — (2)
Income before InCOME taXes . .....cvveiiiir ittt it et 6,158 219 3,828
Provision for income taxes ........ ...t it i, 2,371 117 1,512
Nt ICOMMIE & ottt ettt e e et e et $ 3787 § 102 $ 2316
Per share amounts:

Net income per cOMMON Share . ... ......c.ovvreeiinnennnnnnnn.. $ 063 §$§ 002 $ .40

Net income per common share, assuming dilution................ $ 062 $ 002 § .39
Average shares outstanding:

CoOmMMON SNAIES . . v vttt ettt ettt e et e 6,011 5,869 5,783

Commoeon shares, assuming dilution. ..............ccoeiininn ... 6,130 5,999 5,873

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NASHUA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2004 2003

(In thousands, except
share data)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents. . ... ..ottt i e e e e $ 884 § 1,183
ReStTICted CaSh . oottt e e e e e 1,202 —
ACCOUNTS TECEIVADIE . . .. .t 33501 31,665
Inventories:
Raw Materials . . . o i e e 14,124 11,399
WV OTK ID PIOCESS .« o v ettt ittt et e e e e e e e 3,260 3,450
Finished B00OGS . .. ...ttt e 7,841 7,886
25,225 22,735
O T CUITENT S8 L . . o ittt ettt et te e ettt et et et e e 4,493 5,205
65,305 60,788
Plant and equipment:
L5 1T N 1,322 902
Buildings and improvements . .. ..ottt e 31,201 28,920
Machinery and eqUIpment. . ... ... i ittt e 66,013 62,689
ConSITUCTION 1N PTOBIESS . . o vttt sttt ettt e e e e et ee e e e e 1,002 875
99,538 93,386
Accumulated depreciation . .. ... e (59,693)  (52,609)
39,845 40,777
GoodWill ... e e e e e 31,516 31,471
Intangibles, net of aMOTHZAION ... ...\ u ittt it eaeees 1,451 1,781
Loans to related parties . . ... ...ttt e e 957 1,208
0 124 T] Ty O 11,886 15,651
TOtAl 8BS o v et ettt e $150,960 $151,676
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable . ... ... $ 16,751 $ 20,474
ACCTUEA B PEIISES .+« vttt e ettt e et et e e e et e e e e 12,782 14,368
Current maturities of long-term debt . ....... ... .. . 3,400 3,400
Current maturities of notes payable to related parties ................ .. ool 710 250
33,643 38,492
Long-term debt, 1ess CUITENt POTHION . . oo\t vn ittt i it eenen e n e 27,350 24,200
Notes payable to related parties . . ... it e 250 960
Other long-term liabilities . .. ... ... e e 23,769 26,827
Commitments and contingencies (see Note 11)
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, par value $1.00; anthorized 20,000,000 shares; Issued 6,208,834 shares in
2004 and 5,902,734 shares in 2003 . . ... ittt e e s 6,209 5,903
Additional paid-in capital ... ... . e 15,484 14,515
Retained earmings . . ..ottt ittt e e e e 57,264 53,477
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Minimum pension liability adjustment, netof tax ......... ... ... .. .. (13,009)  (12,698)
65,948 61,197
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .... ... ...t $150,960 $151,676

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NASHUA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

) Accumulated
Common Stock PI:iddd-lln Treasury Stock Com;):ehheernsive Retained
Shares Par Value Capital Shares Cost Loss Earmnings Total
(In thousands, except share data)
Balance, December 31, 2001 ..... 6,886,649 $ 6,887 $15,901 (1,023,818) $(14,922) — § 62,531 $ 70,397
Stock issued for director
compensatioq ................ 13,428 13 77 — — — —_ 90
Stock issued for executive
compensation ................ — — 6) 750 11 — — 5
Stock options exercised and related
tax benefit................... 53,600 54 259 — —_ —_ — 313
Restricted stock forfeiture........ (60,000) (60)  (295) — — — - (355)
Deferred compensation .......... — — 328 — — — — 328
Deferred compensation forfeiture . . — — 355 — — — — 355
Retirement of treasury shares. . ... (1,023,068) (1,023) (2.416) 1,023,068 14911 — (11,472) —
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income........ooovvennn. — — — — — — 2,316 2,316
Minimum pension liability
adjustment, net of tax ....... —_— — — — —  $(11,431) —  (11,431)
Comprehensive loss ............. — — — — — — —  (9,115)
Balance, December 31, 2002 . .. .. 5,870,609 $ 5,871 $14,203 — —  $(11,431) $ 53,375 $ 62,018
Stock options exercised and related
tax benefit................... 52,125 52 282 — — — — 334
Restricted stock forfeiture........ (20,000) (20)  (306) — B — — (326)
Deferred compensation .......... — — 10 — — — — 10
Deferred compensation forfeiture . . — — 326 — — — — 326
Comprehensive income (loss):
Netincome.................. — — —_ - — — 102 102
Minimum pension liability ‘
adjustment, net of tax ....... — — — - —  $(1,267) — (1,267
Comprehensive loss ............. — — — — — — — (1,165)
Balance, December 31, 2003 ... .. $ 5,902,734 $ 5903 814,515 — —  $(12,698) § 53,477 § 61,197
Stock options exercised and related
tax benefit................... 170,100 170 1,105 — — — — 1,275
Restricted stock issued .......... 136,000 136 (136) — — — — —
Comprehensive income (loss): :
Netincome.................. — — — — — —_ 3,787 3,787
Minimum pension liability
adjustment, net of tax ....... — — — — — 3§ (31 —_ (311)
Comprehensive income .......... — — — — — — — 3,476
Balance, December 31, 2004 .. ... $ 6,208,834 $ 6,209 §$15484 — —  $(13,009) $ 57,264 $ 65,948

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NASHUA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities of Centinuing Cperations
D =1 3R 1ot ) s « P R $ 3,787 § 102§ 2316
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by continuing operating
activities: .
Depreciation and amortization . ... ..o vet it iiiiie i i e 7,900 7,942 7,581
Deferred iNCOME tAXES ..o vt vtiren s sttt nsteeserannoneessnnnneress 2,371 281 1,603
Stock based compensation .. ... e e — 92 423
Tax benefit from exercised stock options . ..............coiiiiiiiiiiiio L 187 — —
Net loss (gain) on curtailment of pension and postretirement plans ............ 971) 1,599 (181)
Loss on sale/disposal of fixed assets ...ttt 45 42
Equity in loss from unconsolidated joint ventures ....................oiunn. 416 523 59
Death benefit premiums purchase (see note 12) ................. ... .. ... ... (2,416) — —
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisition of
businesses:
Restricted Cash . ... it i i i i e i e e e e (1,202) _— —
Accounts receivable . ... ... ... e (1,836) (733) (2,554)
InVEnIOTIES . .. oottt e (2,459) (1,588) 1,418
Tax receivable .. ... oo i e — — (517)
Other assets, other current assets and loans to related parties................ 823 (658) (1,433)
Accounts payable . ... ... e (3,723) 2,423 (1,623)
ACCTUEA EXPENMSES . .« ittt ittt e e e e (1,400) (454) (3,207
Other long-term liabilities .......... .. it i e (177) - (969) 2,156
Cash provided by operating activities . .......... ..ot i 1,308 8,605 6,083
Cash Flows from Investing Activities of Continuing Operations
Investment in plant and eqUIPMENT. . ...ttt i e e (6,599)  (4,307) (4,349)
Investment in unconsolidated joint venture .......... ... ... i, , —_ (325) —
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment . ................ .. .. e 67 21 90
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired ................. ... ... ... .. .. (126) (6,020) (1,700)
Proceeds from surrender of retired executive life insurance policies ............... 1,117 — —
Cash used in investing activities ......... ... (5,541)  (10,631) (5,959)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities of Continuing Gperations
Net proceeds from revolving portion of long-termdebt ......................... 3,750 300 1,662
Principal repayments on term portion of long-term debt ........................ (3,400) - (2,700) {2,000)
Principal repayment on note payable to related parties .................. ... ... (250). (250) —
Repayment on refinancing ...........couurreiniiriiiiin i - — (27,630)
Proceeds from Industrial Revenue Bond ...t © 2,800 — —
Proceeds from refinancing ......... ... . i e — 5,000 27,688
Proceeds from shares exercised under stock option plans........................ 1,089 272 239
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities .................coiiunn 3,989 2,622 41
Cash used in activities of discontinued operations. ................ccvvinn... (55) (498) (61)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.............. e (299) 98 22
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ...................... ... ..as. 1,183 1,085 1,063
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year...............ccvviiieiiniiieannn.. $ 884 § 1,183 § 1,085
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Interest paid (net of amount capitalized) ........... ... .. il $ 1,068 §$ 1,198 § 1,452
Income taxes paid for continuing operations, net ..........ccooiiiiiiiii... $ 282 § 9 § 203
Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities
Fair value of assets acquired in acquisitions. . ........ ..o e, $ 208 § 6314 § 4,694
Accrued liability to purchase Dietzgen inventories ...................... ... ... — — (1,052)
Note payable with Computer Imaging Supplies, Inc. .............. ... . ... ... — - (1,000)
Liabilities assumed in acquisitions ............. oot (82) (294) (942)
Cash paid for acquiSItions ... ...\ttt it e i e $ 126 §$§ 6020 § 1,700

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NASHUA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of the Company

Nashua Corporation is a manufacturer, converter and marketer of labels, specialty papers and imaging
products. Our primary products include thermal and other coated papers, wide-format papers, pressure-
sensitive labels and tags, transaction and financial receipts and toners/developers for use in photocopiers.

Segment and Related Information
We have three reportable segments as discussed in detail in Note 13:
(1) Label Producis
(2) Specialty Paper Products
(3) Imaging Supplies

Basis of Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Nashua Corporation and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from product sales or services rendered when the following four revenue
recognition criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services
have been rendered, the selling price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Environmental Expenditures

We expense environmental expenditures relating to ongoing operations unless the expenditures extend
the life, increase the capacity or improve the safety or efficiency of our property, mitigate or prevent
environmental contamination that has yet to occur and improve our property compared with its original
condition, or are incurred for property held for sale.

Expenditures relating to site assessment, remediation and monitoring are accrued and expensed when
the costs are both probable and the amount can be reascnably estimated. We base estimates on in-house
and third-party studies considering current technologies, remediation alternatives and current environmen-
tal standards. In addition, if there are other participants and the liability is joint and several, the financial
stability of the other participants is considered in determining cur accrual.

Shipping Costs

We classify third-party shipping costs as a component of seiling and distribution expenses in our
Consolidated Statement of Operations. Third-party shipping costs totaled $11.5 million, $11.3 million and
$10.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Research and Development

We expense research and development costs as incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in our financial statements and accompanying notes.
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NASHUA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Significant estimates include tax contingency reserves, allowances for obsolete inventory and uncollectible
receivables, environmental obligations, pension and other postretirement benefits, valuation allowances for
deferred tax assets, future cash flows associated with assets and useful lives for depreciation and
amortizaticn. Actual results could differ from our estimates.

Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investment instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents $1.2 million of unused proceeds from an Industrial Revenue Bond issued
by the Industrial Revenue Board of Jefferson City, Tennessee. The unused proceeds are restricted to the
purchase of certain equipment and leasehold improvements to be used in our Jefferson City, Tennessee
facility.

Accounts Recelvable

Our consolidated accounts receivable balance is net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $.7 million
at December 31, 2004 and $.9 million at December 31, 2003.

Inventories

Cur inventories are carried at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out,
or commonly known as FIFO, method for approximately 81 percent of our inventories at December 31,
2004 and 83 percent of our inventories at December 31, 2003, and by the last-in, first-out, or commonly
known as LIFO, method for the balance. If the FIFO method had been used to cost all inventories, the
balances would have been approximately $1.8 million and $1.7 million higher at December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

Plant ard Equipment

Our plant and equipment are stated at cost. We charge expenditures for maintenance and repairs to
operations as incurred, while additions, renewals and betterments of plant and equipment are capitalized.
Items which are fully depreciated, sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, together with related accumulated
depreciation, are removed from our accounts and, where applicable, the related gain or loss is recognized.

Depreciation expense was $7.5 million for 2004, $7.5 million for 2003 and $7.3 million for 2002. For
financial reporting purposes, we compute depreciation expense using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements . ... .. ..ottt e 5 - 40 years
Machinery and eqUIPMENt. . .. ..ottt ettt et e e 3 - 20'years

We review the value of our plant and equipment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquired businesses over the fair value of identifiable net
assets acquired. We adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” at the beginning of fiscal 2002. For the purposes of performing the required
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NASHUA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO COCNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

impairment tests, a present value (discounted cash flow) method was used to determine fair value of the
reporting units. We performed our annual impairment test in the fourth quarter of 2004 with an
assessment that no impairment had occurred. Intangible assets deemed to have an indefinite life are tested
for impairment by comparing the fair value of the asset to its carrying amount. We do not have intangible
assets with an indefinite life. See Note 3 “Intangible Assets” and Note 4 “Goodwill” for more information.

Stock-Based Compensation

At December 31, 2004, we had three stock compensation plans, which are described more fully in
Note 9. We account for those plans under the recognition and measurement principles of APB No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. Under APB No. 25, no stock-
based employee compensation cost relating to stock option awards is reflected in our net income, as all
options under our plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of our common stock on their date
of grant. Stock-based compensation, representing grants to non-employee directors and vesting of
performance-based restricted stock awards, was $0 for 2004, $.1 million for 2003 and $.4 million for 2002.
The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if we had applied the fair
value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as
amended by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” to stock-based employee compensation:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2063 2002

(In thousands, except per
share data)

Netincome asreported .........c.viiiiiiirrineneenns, $3,787 $102 $2.316
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in the
determination of net income as reported, net of related tax effects — 43 259

Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under the fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax

effects ... __(78) (107) _ (683)
Pro forma netincome...........o i $3,709 § 38 $1,892
Earnings per share;

Basic —as reported .......... ittt e $ 063 $0.02 $ 0.40
" Basic—oproforma ... ... e $ 062 3001 §0.33

Diluted —as reported. ...l $ 062 $002 §$0.39

Diluted —pro forma. ... ittt $ 061 $001 § 0.32

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes result principally from the vse of different methods of depreciation and
amortization for income tax and financial reporting purposes, the recognition of expenses for financial
reporting purposes in years different from those in which the expenses are deductible for income tax
© purposes, and the recognition of the tax benefit of net operating losses and other tax credits.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of
cash equivalents and trade receivables.
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NASHUA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

We place our temporary cash investments with high quality financial institutions and in high quality
liquid investments. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are limited because
our customer base consists of a large number of geographically diverse customers. We perform ongoing
credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and maintain allowances for potential credit losses.
We generally do not require collateral or other security to support customer receivables.

Concentrations of Labor

We had 906 full-time employees at February 10, 2005. Approximately 274 of our employees are
members of one of several unions, principally the Paper, Allied Industrial, Chemical and Energy Workers
International Union. The agreements had initial durations of one to three years and expire on April 2,
2006, March 31, 2007 or March 5, 2008. We believe our employee relations are satisfactory.

Concentrations of Supply

We purchase certain important raw materials from a sole source or a limited number of
manufacturers. Management believes that other suppliers could qualify to provide similar raw materials on
comparable terms. The time required to locate and qualify other suppliers, however, could cause a delay in
manufacturing that could be disruptive to our company.

Fair Value of Finagncia) Instruments

The recorded amounts for cash and cash equivalents, other current assets, accounts receivable and
accounts payable and other current liabilities approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these
financial instruments. The fair values of amounts outstanding under our debt instruments approximate their
book valtues in all material respects due to the variable nature of the interest rate provisions associated
with such instruments.

Earnings per Common and Common Equivalent Share

Earnings per common and common equivalent share are computed based on the total of the weighted
average number of common shares and, when applicable, the weighted average number of common
equivalent shares outstanding during the period presented.

New Accounticg Proncuncements

In November 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 151, Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4,
Inventory Pricing (“FAS 1517”). FAS 151 clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility
expense, freight, handling costs, and waste material. Such abnormal expenses must be recognized in the
period in which they are incurred. In addition, FAS 151 requires the allocation of fixed production
overhead to inventory based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. Unallocated overheads
must be recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. FAS 151 is effective for
inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005 and we do not currently
anticipate any material accounting or disclosure requirement under the adoption of this new accounting
pronouncement.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised
2004), Share-Based Payment (“FAS 123R”). This standard is a revision of FAS 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees, and its related implementation guidance. FAS 123R requires all share-based
payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial
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NASHUA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

statements based on their fair values and is effective for the first interim or annual reporting period
beginning after June 15, 2005. We expect to adopt FAS 123R on July 1, 2005, using the standard’s
modified prospective application method. Had we expensed employee stock options and employee share
purchase rights under FAS 123R for the year ended December 31, 2004, net income and diluted earnings
per share would have been reduced by $ .1 million and $0.01 per share, respectively (see above, “Stock
Based Compensation”). Under FAS 123R, the fair value would be amortized into compensation expense
over the vesting period of the stock options.

Note 2: Business Changes
Business Acquisitions

In December 2003, we acquired the assets of the Magellan wide-format graphics product line from
PM Co. L.L.C. Operating activity under this product line is reported in our Specialty Paper Products
segment from the date of acquisition.

In November 2003, we acquired the assets of the supermarket label product line from Zebra
Technologies, Inc. The supermarket label business markets and distributes pressure sensitive direct thermal
labels used solely for marking prepackaged meat, produce, deli and bakery items in supermarkets, grocery
and convenience stores. Operating activity relating to this line is reported under our Label Products
segment from the date of acquisition.

In February 2003, we acquired the operating assets of The Label Company from Bunzl Distribution
and signed a multi-year agreement to supply Bunzl with label products. The Label Company had primarily
been a supplier of supermarket promotional, scale and product identification labels mainly for Bunzl and
other customers. Operating activity relating to The Label Company is reported under our Label Products
segment from the date of acquisition.

In June 2002, we acquired out of bankruptcy certain assets of Dietzgen LLC, including trademarks,
trade names, customer lists and certain equipment and inventories. Dietzgen, an after-market provider of
wide-format digital media and imaging supplies for the architectural, engineering and construction markets,
filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code on January 31, 2002. Operating activity
relating to the assets acquired from Dietzgen is reported as part of our Specialty Paper Products segment
from the date of acquisition.

In April 2002, we acquired the assets of Computer Imaging Supplies Inc., a privately held
manufacturer and marketer of security and fraud prevention products for the point-of-sale transaction
industry and of inkjet and toner cartridges. The products of Computer Imaging Supplies include muiti-
color ribbons and specialized inks that prevent unauthorized duplication of cash register receipts. Operating
activity relating to the assets acquired from Computer Imaging Supplies is reported as part of our
Specialty Paper Products segment from the date of acquisition.

Strategic Alliance

During 2004 our strategic agreement with Parlex Corporation expired in accordance with its terms.
We entered into the strategic agreement on February 25, 2003 to cooperate in the development of flexible
circuit technology incorporating proprietary printing and plating technologies. The agreement created an
organization, Stratos Technology, LLC, of which we owned 50 percent that utilized both parties’ relative
expertise ir ink and printed circuit technology, label converting and the design, application and production
of flexible circuits. Under the agreement, Stratos Technology worked to develop innovative products for
use in the automotive and cellular markets. We are in the process of negotiating cross-licensing
agreements for use of the press printed circuit technology by both parties.
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Discontinued COperations

Details of balances outstanding related to discontinued operations recorded prior to 2000 were as
follows:

At December 31

2004 2003
(In thousands)
T £ $ 930 § 930
Liabilities .. ... e e (3,502) (3,727)
Net assets and (liabilities) of discontinued operations ................... $(2,572) $(2,797)

Our asset balance as of December 31, 2004, consists primarily of our 37.1 percent interest in the
Cerion Technologies Liquidating Trust, a trust established pursuant to the liquidation of Cerion
Technologies Inc., formerly a publicly held company. Cerion ceased operations during the fourth quarter of
1998 and is currently in the process of liquidation. We account for our investment in Cerion based on its
expected net realizable value, net of taxes.

Qur liability balance consists primarily of tax reserves relating to discontinued operations.

Note 3: Intangible Assets

Details of acquired intangible assets are as follows:
At December 31, 2004

Weighted
Gross Average

Carrying  Accumulated Amortization
Amount Amortization Period

(In thousands)

Trademarks and trade names ...............c.vevieen... $ 360 $ 220 9 years
Licensing agreement .............vouieirnennirnnen . 230 126 5 years
Customer relationships and lists . .................. . ... 1,062 421 9 years
Customer Contracts .........vviriniiiiineennneeennns 620 340 4 years
Non-competition agreements ...............uveeunenn.. 100 55 5 years
Patented technology . ..........c i 90 49 5 years

$2,662 $1,211
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Customer relationships and lists increased from 2003 due to an acquisition of a customer list made
during 2004.

Amortization Expense:

For the year ended December 31, 2003 ... .. ittt ettt $481

For the year ended December 31, 2004 .. ... ... . iiiurtiiite i $441

Estimated for the year ending:
December 31, 2005 ..ottt e e e $389
December 31, 2006 ...ttt e $345
December 31, 2007 ..ot e e e e $208
December 31, 2008 .. ot $ 91
December 31, 2009 and thereafter. ... ..o vttt i e $ 57
December 31, 2010 and thereafter: . ... ... i e $361

Note 4: Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill by segment and activity during the year ended December 31, 2004,
is as follows:
Specialty Paper Label Products

Products Segment Segment Total
(In thousands)
Balance as of January 1,2004.................... $14,142 $17,329 $31,471
Adjustments to goodwill resulting from the
acquisition of The Label Company business . ..... — 45 45
Balance as of December 31,2004, . ...l $14,142 $17,374 $31,516

Accumulated amortization of goodwill prior to the adoption of FAS 142 was $2.7 million.

Note 5: Indebtedness

In December 2004, LaSalle Bank, NA and Fleet National Bank issued an irrevocable letter of credit
for $2.8 million in support of an Industrial Development Revenue Bond issued by the Industrial
Development Board of the City of Jefferson City, Tennessee for our purchase of property consisting of
land and building contiguous to our Jefferson City, Tennessee campus. The $2.8 million borrowed under
the Industrial Revenue Bond matures on December 1, 2024, The bonds carry a weekly variable interest
rate established by the remarketing agent based on the Bond Market Association Municipal Swap Index.
The unused proceeds from the IRB are restricted to the purchase of equipment on the Tennessee campus
and improvements to the acquired property. The unused proceeds of $1.2 million are included under the
caption “Restricted Cash” in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We plan to use the unreimbursed funds by
June 9, 2006.

We are party to a Credit Agreement, dated March 1, 2002, with LaSalle Bank, NA as Agent and
Issuing Bank and Fleet National Bank that, as amended, consists of a term loan of $15 million and a
revolving loan commitment of $30 million and that requires us to maintain certain financial covenants such
as total funded debt to adjusted earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, also
known as adjusted EBITDA, and a fixed charge coverage ratio. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement
are collateralized by a security interest in our accounts receivable, inventories, certain machinery and
equipment and real estate located in Merrimack, New Hampshire. We had $3.6 million of additional
borrowing capacity at December 31, 2004 under our revolving loan commitment. We had $5.4 million of
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obligations under standby letters of credit with the banks which are included in our bank debt when
calculating our borrowing capacity. We entered into a first amendment to the Credit Agreement, effective
July 15, 2003, to increase the term loan under the Credit Agreement from $10 million to $15 million and
to adjust the terms of the quarterly interest payments. We entered into a second amendment to the Credit
Agreement, effective July 24, 2003, to waive our non-compliance with the funded debt to EBITDA ratio
and the minimum EBITDA financial covenants for the quarter ended June 27, 2003. We entered into a
third amendment to the Credit Agreement, effective September 25, 2003, to replace the minimum
EBITDA covenant with a minimum adjusted ERITDA covenant, and we entered into a consent and
fourth amendment to the Credit Agreement, effective December 30, 2003, adding the provision to the
funded debt to EBITDA ratio, for the computation period ended December 31, 2003 only, to be computed
as the funded debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio.

We entered into a fifth amendment to the Credit Agreement, effective March 31, 2004 and we
entered into a sixth amendment effective December 1, 2004. Together, these amendments:

 extended the term of the credit facility to February 28, 2007;

« modified the definition of fixed charge coverage ratio to provide that (1) the ratio is based on our
acdjusted EBITDA and (2) payments of principal of funded debt, included in the calculation of the
fixed charge coverage ratio, are limited to the last four principal payments;

» replaced the definition and covenant relating to the total debt to EBITDA ratio with a definition
and covenant relating to the funded debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio;

* eliminated the covenant relating to minimum adjusted EBITDA,;

» adjusted the interest rate on loans outstanding under the credit facility to provide that the interest
rate is based on the funded debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio and that the interest rate is, at our
option, either (1) a range from zero to .25 percent over the base rate (prime) or (2) a range from
I.5 percent to 2.0 percent over LIBOR;

» modified the definitions of Revolving Outstandings and Stated Amount to include the IRB Letter of
Credit;

* adjusts the letter of credit commitment amount to include the IRB Letter of Credit;

+ adjust the covenants on the limitations on debt and liens to exclude the debt to the IDB and
related liens; and

+ adjust the description of any non-payment of other debt to include debt arising under the
Reimbursement Agreement relating to the IRB Letter of Credit.

Under the amended Credit Agreement, we are also subject to a non-use fee for any unutilized portion
of our revolving loan that ranges from .25 percent to .375 percent based on our funded debt to adjusted
EBITDA ratio. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the weighted average annual
interest rate on our long-term debt was 3.5 percent and 3.3 percent, respectively.

Furthermore, without prior consent of our lenders, the Credit Agreement limits, among other things,
the payment of dividends to $.6 million, capital expenditures to $8.0 million, the incurrence of additional
debt and restricts the sale of certain assets and merger or acquisition activities. We were in compliance
with all of the above financial covenants as of December 31, 2004.
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The aggregate amounts of maturities cn our long-term debt are as follows:

2005 2006 2007 2008 Beyond Total
(In thousands)
Term portion of long-term debt ...... $3,400 $3400 $ 100 $— $ — $6,900
Revolving portion of long-term debt. . . — — 21,050 — —_ 21,050
Industrial revenue bond . ............ — — — _— 2,800 2,800
$3400 $3,400 $21,150 $—  $2,800 $30,750

Note 6: Notes Payable to Related Parties

On April 1, 2002, we acquired the assets of Computer Imaging Supplies, Inc. In connection with the
acquisition, we issued a promissory note payable to Computer Imaging Supplies in the original principal
amount of $1 million. The outstanding principal balance on the promissory note bears interest at the prime
rate. Interest on the promissory note is payable quarterly, and the principal is payable in four annual
installments of $250,000 through April 1, 2006. As a result of the acquisition, the founders and co-owners
of Computer Imaging Supplies became Nashua employees.

We also have two notes held by former Rittenhouse and current Nashua employees that were
assumed in connection with our acquisition of Rittenhouse Paper Company. These notes are in the original
principal amount of $230,000 each, payable on August 31, 2005. Interest on these notes is payable
quarterly and accrues at our incremental borrowing rate.

The aggregate amounts of maturities on our notes payable are as follows:
2005 2006 Total
(In thousands)

Notes payable to related parties . . .......vvviinireininreeneninn $710  $250  $960

Note 7. Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following:

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Current:
United States .. ..ot e $ — $@47) § (91
A it e e — (17) —
Total CUITEnt. ..ottt et e e it et e — (164) 91)
Deferred:
United States .. ..ot e e 2,080 257 1,362
State ........... e FR 291 24 241
Total deferred . . ... 2,371 281 1,603
Provision for iNCOME tAXES . .. oot ee ettt e $2,371  $ 117  $1,512
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Total net deferred tax assets (liabilities) are comprised of the following:

2004 2003
(In thousands)

DePrECiAtiON & .\ vt $(1,423) $(1,124)
O T . e (358) (372)
Gross deferred tax liabilities ........ ... ..o i (1,781)  (1,496)
Restructuring ..........ooviiiieninnienn.. e e — 496
Pension and postretirement benefits. . ..«.......... ... . L . 8,402 8,818
State net operating loss carryforwards and other state credits ............. 2,359 1,922
Alternative minimum tax and general business credits ................... 1,428 1,434
ACCTUEH BXDEIMSES - - o o vttt vttt ittt et e e 633 931
INVENLOTY FESETVES . .\ttt 558 1,000
Bad debt 1e8erves . . ... 341 419
L@ 7175 O 961 2,175
Gross deferred (aX asSet .. ..ottt 14,682 17,195
Deferred tax assets valuation allowance ................. ... ...covion.. (600) (600)

Wet deferred tax @ssels ... ...ttt $12,301  $15,099

Reconciliations between income tax provision from continuing operations computed using the United
States statutory income tax rate and our effective tax rate are as follows:

2004 2003 2002

United States federal statutory rate ............. ... ... ..... e 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit ........... .. ... i 2.9 2.0 4.1
Non-deductible meals and entertainment. ... ...t enn... S 123 4
Other, DE . .ot i e b 41 =
B ective (aX Tale. . o .ottt ittt et e e e e 38.5% 53.4% 39.5%

At December 31, 2004, other current assets included $2.8 million of net deferred tax assets and
$.7 million of tax receivables, and other assets included $9.5 million of net deferred tax assets. At
December 31, 2003, $3.7 million and $.5 million of net deferred tax assets were included in other current
assets and other assets, respectively. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, $4.5 million and $5.3 million of
accrued taxes were included in accrued expenses.

At December 31, 2004, we had $2.4 million of state net operating loss carryforwards and other state
credits and $1.4 million of Federal tax credit carryforwards, which are available to offset future domestic
taxable earnings. The state net operating loss carryforward benefits and other state credits expire between
2004 and 2020. Included in the $1.4 million of Federal tax credit carryforwards are business tax credits of
$.6 millicn that expire beginning in 2013 and $.8 million of tax credit carryforwards for alternative
minimum tax that have no expiration date.

In December 1999, the Internal Revenue Service completed an examination of our corporate income
tax returns for the years 1995 through 1997 and issued a Notice of Proposed Adjustment which assessed
additional taxes of $5.2 million, excluding interest. The assessment represents a total of $14.0 million of
adjustments to taxable income for the years under review. The proposed adjustments relate to the
deductibility of restructuring and other reserves applicable to continuing and discontinued operations as
well as the utilization of foreign net operating losses primarily associated with discontinued operations. We
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disagreed with the position taken by the IRS and filed a formal protest of the proposed adjustments on
April 6, 2000.

On October 28, 2003, the IRS completed an examination of our corporate income tax returns for the
years 1998 through 2000 and issued a Notice of Proposed Adjustment which assessed additional taxes of
$30,021 excluding interest. While the amount assessed is immaterial, we have filed a protest of the
proposed adjustment since certain adjustments proposed by the IRS for the years 1995 through 1997 could
impact the tax liability for the period 1998 through 2000.

On January 26, 2005, we executed a proposed settlement with the appeals office of the IRS for all
outstanding years, which is subject to review and final approval by the Joint Committee on Taxation. The
proposed settlement proposes final assessments for all outstanding years totaling $1.2 million before
interest.

While we believe that we have provided adequately for cur tax liabilities through December 31, 2004,
including liabilities related to matters in dispute with taxing authorities, we can provide no assurances that
we will prevail in our defense against adjustments proposed in these pending or future federal and state
examinations. In addition, the ultimate resolution of these open tax matters could be either in excess of or
less than current reserves.

Note 8: Shareholders’ Equity

Our ability to pay dividends is restricted to $.6 miltion under the provisions of our credit agreement,
without the prior approval of our lenders. We did not declare or pay a cash dividend on our common stock
in 2004 or 2003 and do not currently intend to pay dividends.

Note 9: Stock Option and Stock Award Plans

On May 4, 2004, our stockholders adopted our 2004 Value Creation Incentive Plan pursuant to which
restricted stock awards have been granted to certain key executives that will vest only upon achievement of
certain target average closing prices of our common stock over the 40-consecutive trading day period
which ends on the third anniversary of the date of grant (40-day average closing price). The terms of the
restricted stock provide that 33 percent of such shares shall vest if the 40-day average closing price of at
least $13.00 but less than $14.00 is achieved, 66 percent of such shares shall vest if the 40-day average
closing price of at least $14.00 but less than $15.00 is achieved, and 100 percent of such shares shall vest
if the 40-day average closing price of $15.00 or greater is achieved. The restricted shares vest upon a
change of control if the share price at the date of the change in control exceeds $13.00. Shares of the
restricted stock are forfeited if the specified closing prices of our common stock are not met. Of the
150,000 shares authorized for issuance under the 2004 Value Creation Incentive Plan, 14,000 shares are
available to be awarded as of December 31, 2004.

In addition to our 2004 Value Creation Incentive Plan, we have three stock compensation plans at
December 31, 2004: the 1987 Stock Option Plan, the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan and the 1999 Sharehoider
Value Plan. Awards may no longer be granted under the 1987 Plan. Awards under the 1996 Plan and the
1999 Plan are made at the discretion of our Leadership and Compensation Committee of our Board of
Directors.

Under the 1987 Plan, nonstatutory stock options have been awarded and are currently exercisable.
Nonstatutory stock options expire 10 years and one day from the date of grant.

Under the 1996 and 1999 Plans, nonstatutory stock options have been awarded. Of the 660,000 and
600,000 shares authorized for the 1996 and 1999 Plans, respectively, 10,343 and 3,450 shares are available
to be awarded as of December 31, 2004. Stock options under the 1996 and 1999 Plans generally become
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exercisable either (a) 50 percent on the first anniversary of grant and the remainder on the second
anniversary of grant, (b) 100 percent at one year from the date of grant, or (c) otherwise as determined
by the Committee. Certain options may become exercisable immediately under certain circumstances and
events as defined under these plans and option agreements. Nonstatutory stock options under the 1996
Plan expire 10 years and one day from the date of grant, and incentive stock options expire 10 years from
the date of grant. Nonstatutory and incentive stock options granted under the 1999 Plan expire 10 years
from the date of grant. Currently, there are no incentive stock options granted under the 1996 and 1999
Plans.

Under the 1996 and 1999 Plans, performance based restricted stock awards have been granted. There
were no restricted stock awards outstanding at December 31, 2004 under these plans. Shares issued under
the plans are initially recorded at their fair market value on the date of grant with a corresponding charge
tc additional paid-in capital representing the unearned portion of these awards. During 2003 restrictions
lIapsed on 33,334 shares and in 2002 restrictions lapsed on 33,333 shares. We recognized compensation
expense of $0 million in 2004, $.1 million in 2003 and $.3 million in 2002 in our Consolidated Statement
of Operations, along with an increase to additional paid-in capital, representing the earned portion of these
awards. Shares of performance based restricted stock are forfeited if the specified closing prices of our
common stock are not met within five years of grant or the executive leaves the company.

A summary of the status of our fixed stock option plans as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and
changes during the years ended on those dates is presented below:

2004 2003 2002

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding beginning of year ........ 806,175 $ 7.58 905,500 $ 7.75 909,500 $ 7.68

Granted ........ ...t 10,000 9.61 — — 61,200 6.72

Exercised ................. ... ... (170,100) 6.40 (52,125) 5.23 (53,600) 4.45

Forfeited — non-vested .............. — — (17,175) 6.27 (4,025) 6.74

Forfeited — exercisable . ............. (58,350) 14.98 (24,200) 15.47 (6,075) 11.00

Expired ............ ... i, (5,500) 26.02 (5,825) 26.27 (1,500) 28.13

Qutstanding end of year ............. 582,225 7.04 806,175 $ 7.58 905,500 $ 7.75

Options exercisable at end of year. . ... 572,225 7.00 791,175  $ 7.59 732,000 $ 8.19
Weighted average fair value of options

granted during the year............ —  $ 364 — — — $1285
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Number Weighted
Number Weighted Average Average Exercisable Average
t

Outstanding Remaining Exercise a Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices at 12/31/04 Contractual Life Price 12/31/04 Price
$400-$438 .............. 170,100 6.1 years $ 4.12 170,100 $ 4.12
$570-$663.............. 190,025 6.4 years $ 6.02 190,025 $ 6.02
$665-3670.............. 46,200 7.2 years $ 6.67 46,200 $ 6.67
$806-$863.............. 65,300 5.4 years $ 8.17 65,300 $ 8.17
$961-811.63.............. 49,100 5.3 years $10.20 39,100 $10.36
$12.37-81975 .............. 61,500 2.6 years $14.82 61,500 $14.82
$401-8%1975 .............. 582,225 5.8 years $ 7.04 572,225 $ 7.00

A summary of the status of our restricted stock plans as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and
changes during the years ended on those dates is presented below:

2004 2003 2002
Restricted stock outstanding at beginning of year........... — 53,334 146,667
Granted ... .. . 136,000 — —
Forfeited and converted .............ccciiiiiiiiinn.. — (53,334)  (93,333)
Restricted stock outstanding at end of year................ 136,000 — 53,334
Weighted average fair value per restricted share at grant date § 347 § — 3 —
Weighted average share price at grant date................ $ 900 % — 3 —

We follow the disclosure-only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” We continue to measure compensation cost using the
intrinsic value based method of accounting prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25. Stock-based compensation
representing grants to non-employee directors and vesting of performance based restricted stock awards,
recognized in our Consolidated Statement of Operations, was $.1 million for 2004, $.1 million for 2003 and
$.4 million for 2002. If we had elected to recognize compensation cost based on the fair value of options
and restricted stock granted at grant date as prescribed by FAS 123, net income (loss) and earnings (loss)
per share would have decreased (increased) as disclosed in our summary of significant accounting policies
included in Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”
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The assumptions and methods used in estimating the fair value at the grant date of options and
restricted shares granted are listed below:

. Grant Year
2004 2603 2002

Volatility of Share Price:

OPHOMS ..ot e 34.0% N/A 36%

Restricted Stock ...t 33.8% - —
Dividend yield:

ODHONS .« ottt e e — — —

Restricted stock .......... ... . i — — —
Interest raie:

OPHOMS & e e 3.6% N/A 4.7%

Restricted stock .. ...t 3.3% — —
Expected life of options. ... ...t 5.5 years N/A 5.7 years
Valuation methodclogy:

Options . ..o _Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model

Restricted StoCK ...t viniii i Binomial Pricing Model

Because the determination of the fair value of all options granted includes vesting periods over several
years, the pro forma disclosures included in Note 1 are not representative of pro forma effects of reported
net income for future periods.

Note 16: Earnings Per Share

Reconciliations of the numerators and denominators used in our 2004, 2003 and 2002 earnings per
share calculations are presented below.

Year Ended December 31, 2004

Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
(In thousands, except per share data)
Net NCOME . oot e ittt e e $3,787 — $ —
Basic EPS:

Net income available to common shareholders . . ... .. $3,787 6,011 $0.63
Effect of dilutive securities stock options .............. — 119 —
Diluted EPS:

Net income available to common shareholders,

assuming dilution ......... ..o $3,787 6,130 $0.62
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Year Ended December 31, 2003

Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
(In thousands, except per share data)
NEt INCOME ot vttt ettt ettt et et e $102 i $ —
Basic EPS:

Net income available to common shareholders . ...... $102 5,869 $.02
Effect of dilutive securities stock options.............. — 130 —
Diluted EPS:

Net income available to common shareholders,

assuming dilution ............. ..., $102 5,999 $ .02

Year Ended December 31, 2002

Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
(In thousands, except per share data)
NELINCOME o .ottt ittt eiee e i eaeans $2,316 — $ —
Basic EPS:

Net income available to common shareholders . ... ... $2,316 5,783 $ .40
Effect of dilutive securities Stock options ............. — 90 —
Diluted EPS:

Net income available to common shareholders,

assuming dilution ........... ... . o L $2,316 5,873 $ .39

Performance based restricted stock of 136,000, 0 and 53,334 shares for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, was not included in the above computations. Such shares could be
issued in the future subject to the occurrence of certain events as described in Note 9, “Stock Option and
Stock Award Plans.”

Note 11: Commitments and Contingencies

Our rent expense for office equipment, facilities and vehicles was $2.2 million for 2004, $1.8 miilion
for 2003 and $1.6 million for 2002. At December 31, 2004, we are committed, under non-cancelable
operating and capital leases, as follows: ‘

Beyond
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2009 Total
(In thousands)
Energy-related purchase obligations......... $54 $— $— $— $— $— § 574
Capital leases .........cooiiviineannn. 184 84 22 — — — 290
Non-cancelable operating leases............ 626 505 460 346 149 166 2,252

$1,384 $589 $482 $346 $149  $166  $3,116

At December 31, 2004, we had a $5.4 million obligation under standby letters of credit with LaSalle
Bank, NA and Fleet National Bank.

In August and September 1996, two individual plaintiffs filed lawsuits in the Circuit Court of Cook
County, Illinois against us, Cerion Technologies, Inc., certain directors and officers of Cerion, and our
underwriter, on behalf of all persons who purchased the common stock of Cerion between May 24, 1996
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and July 9, 1996. These two complaints were consolidated. In March 1997, the same individual plaintiffs
joined by a third plaintiff filed a Consolidated Amended Class Action Complaint. The consolidated
complaint alleged that, in connection with Cerion’s initial public offering, the defendants issued materially
false and misleading statements and omitted the disclosure of material facts regarding, in particular,
certain significant customer relationships. In October 1997, the Circuit Court, on motion by the
defendants, dismissed the consolidated complaint. The plaintiffs filed a Second Amended Consolidated
Complaint alleging similar claims as the first consolidated complaint seeking damages and injunctive relief.
On May 6, 1998, the Circuit Court, on motion by the defendants, dismissed with prejudice the Second
Amended Consolidated Complaint. The plaintiffs filed with the Appellate Court an appeal of the Circuit
Court’s ruling. On November 19, 1999, the Appellate Court reversed the Circuit Court’s ruling that
dismissed the Second Amended Consolidated Complaint. The Appellate Court ruled that the Second
Amended Consclidated Complaint represented a valid claim and sent the case back to the Circuit Court
for further proceedings. On December 27, 1999, we filed a Petition with the Supreme Court of Illinois. In
that Petition, we asked the Supreme Court of Illinois to determine whether the Circuit Court or the
Appellate Court is correct. Our Petition was denied and the case was sent to the Circuit Court for trial.
Discovery has been completed, but no date has been set for trial and pre-trial motions. On October 8§,
2003, the Circuit Court heard motions on a summary judgment motion and a class action certification
motion. The Circuit Court is expected to rule on these motions at any time. We believe that the lawsuit is
without merit and will continue to defend ourselves in this matter. We also believe that we will receive the
value of our 37.1 percent ownership in the Cerion Liquidating Trust which was valued at $.9 miilion on an
after-tax basis at December 31, 2004. Cur investment in Cerion is included under other assets in our
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

During the third quarter of 2001, we entered into supply agreements for laminated and coated
products with The Fasson Roll North America division of Avery Dennison. Under the terms of the
agreements, we are committed to purchase a significant portion of the laminated materials we use in our
Label Products segment from Avery Dennison through December 31, 2005. If we fail to meet the
minimum purchase volumes specified in the agreements, we are subject to financial penalties. We acquired
the required quantities and were in compliance with the agreements for 2003 and 2004.

In December 2002, we eliminated the availability of certain postretirement health benefits to union
and non-union employees of Nashua who had at least 10 years of service and chose to retire between
age 60 to 65 which provided access to health benefits until age 65. The unions in New Hampshire
objected to the action and filed a grievance. The final step of the grievance process is arbitration by the
American Arbitration Association. The subject of the Arbitration was the interpretation of the collective
bargaining contract language which we believe allows modification of the eligibility of those postretirement
health benefits. The unions’ position is that regardless of the contract wording, these benefits cannot be
eliminated without bargaining with the unions. The Arbitration hearing occurred on July 28, 2003 and the
arbitrator ruled in favor of the unions on October 24, 2003. On November 24, 2003, we filed an appeal of
the arbitraticon decision with the U.S. District Court for the District of New Hampshire. We believe the
arbitrator erred in his decision process and in December 2004 we filed briefs supporting our position with
the U.S. District Court. We anticipate the complete appeals process could take years.

On May 30, 2003, Ricoh Company, Ltd. and affiliated companies filed a suit in the U.S. District
Court for the District of New Jersey against several defendants, including the largest customer of our
Imaging Supplies segment and another company who is a supplier to the Imaging Supplies segment. The
Complaint alleged multiple counts of patent infringement, trademark infringement, and unfair competition
by the defendants. On October 17, 2003, Ricoh amended the Complaint and added us as an additional co-
defendant in the suit. The allegations arose from the sale and distribution of Ricoh compatible toner
products. We filed an answer to the Complaint in December 2003, The suit is in the discovery phase. The
parties have filed various motions, including summary judgment motions, and are awaiting rulings from the
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court. No trial date has been set. We believe we have valid defenses and potential recourse against certain
other co-defendants in this matter.

On November 5, 2004, Océ North America Inc. and Océ Printing Systems GmbH filed a Complaint
for patent infringement against us in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Illinois. Océ did
not serve the initial Complaint on us. On March 3, 2005, Océ filed the First Amended Complaint in the
U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Illinois. The First Amended Complaint was served on us
on March 3, 2005. With our outside counsel, we are reviewing the First Amended Complaint and will
respond appropriately. Our attorneys continue to evaluate the matter and develop our legal defenses.

On November 12, 2004, Sandra Hook, a former employee filed suit in Chancery Court for Jefferson
County, Tennessee claiming discrimination related to the ending of her employment with us in November
2003 and seeking damages in excess of $1.2 million. We believe Ms. Hook’s claims to be without merit
and intend to defend the case vigorously.

We are involved in certain environmental matters and have been designated by the Environmental
Protection Agency, referred to as the EPA, as a potentially responsible party for certain hazardous waste
sites. In addition, we have been notified by certain state environmental agencies that some of our sites not
addressed by the EPA require remedial action. These sites are in various stages of investigation and
remediation. Due to the unique physical characteristics of each site, the technology employed, the
extended timeframes of each remediation, the interpretation of applicable laws and regulations and the
financial viability of other potential participants, our ultimate cost of remediation is difficult to estimate.
Accordingly, estimates could either increase or decrease in the future due to changes in such factors. At
December 31, 2004, based on the facts currently known and our prior experience with these matters, we
have concluded that it is probable that site assessment, remediation and monitoring costs will be incurred.
We have estimated a range for these costs of $.4 million to $1.0 million for continuing operations. These
estimates could increase if other potentially responsible parties or our insurance carriers are unable or
unwilling te bear their allocated share and cannot be compelled to do so. At December 31, 2004, our
accrual balances relating to environmental matters were $.4 million for continuing operations. Based on
information currently available, we believe that it is probable that the major potentially responsible parties
will fully pay the costs apportioned to them. We believe that our remediation expense is not likely to have
a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

We are involved in various other lawsuits, claims and inquiries, most of which are routine to the
nature of our business. In the opinion of our management, the resolution of these matters will not
materially affect us.

Note 12: Postretirement Benefits
Defined Contribution Plan

Eligible employees may participate in the Nashua Corporation Employees’ Savings Plan, a defined
contribution 401k plan. We match participating employee contributions at 50 percent for the first 6 percent
of base compensation that a participant contributes to the Plan. Contributions can be increased or
decreased at the option of our Board of Directors. For 2004, 2003 and 2002 our contributions to this Plan
were $.9 million, $1.0 million and $1.0 million, respectively. Participants are immediately vested in all
contributions, plus actual earnings thereon.

The Plan also provides that eligible employees not covered under our defined benefit pension plans
may receive a profit sharing contribution. This contribution, which is normally based on our profitability, is
discretionary and not defined. Profit sharing contributions were $0 million for both 2004 and 2003 and
$.2 million for 2002.
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Pension Plans

We have three pension plans, which cover portions of our regular full-time employees. Benefits under
these plans are generally based on years of service and the levels of compensation during those years. Our
policy is to fund the minimum amounts specified by regulatory statutes. Assets of the plans are invested in
common stocks, fixed-income securities and interest-bearing cash equivalent instruments. As of
December 31, 202, we froze benefits under two of these pension plans; the Nashua Corporation
Retirement Plan for Salaried Employees and the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan.

Retiree Health Care and Other Benefits

We also provide certain postretirement health care and death benefits to eligible retired employees
and their spouses. Salaried participants generally became eligible for retiree health care benefits after
reaching age 60 with ten years of service and retired prior to January 1, 2003. Benefits, eligibility and cost-
sharing provisions for hourly employees vary by location or bargaining unit. Generally, the medical plans
are fully insured managed care plans. In 1993, the postretirement benefit plan was changed to share the
cost of benefits with all retirees, resulting in an unrecognized benefit, which is being amortized over the
future service period of the active employees.. During 2002, we eliminated these benefits for active
employees retiring after December 31, 2002. The unions in New Hampshire filed a grievance on the
termination of the postretirement medical benefits. The arbitration hearing was held on July 28, 2003 and
the arbitrator ruled in favor of the unions on October 24, 2003. On November 24, 2003, we filed an appeal
of the arbitrator’s decision in the U.S. District Court for the District of New Hampshire. In December
2004, we filed briefs supporting our position with the court.
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Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

2004 2003 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Change in benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year ... §$ 81,721 § 70917 $ 4,791 $ 3,893

SerVICE COSt. . oottt e 834 771 58 60

Interest cost ... ... 4,877 4,624 215 289

Curtailment/Settlement ....................... (274) — (1,820) 944

Actuarial loss (gain) ............ ... ool 2,082 7,651 (508) 204

Benefitspaid . .......... .. .o, (2,547) (2,242) (451) (599
Projected benefit obligation at end of year ........ $ 86,693 $ 81,721 $ 2285 § 4,791

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year...... $ 64,659 $ 55,368 — —

Actual return on plan assets . .. ... .. 6,420 11,249 — —_

Employer contribution......................... 458 — 2,695 599

Settlement..........coiiiiiiiii i (172) — —_ —

Benefitspaid........................... e (2,547) (1,958) (2,695)  (599)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year........... $ 68818 $ 64659 § —_ -

Reconciliation of funded status

Fundedstatus..............ciiiiniveennnnnn., $(17,875) $(17,062) $(2,285) $(4,790)
Unrecognized net actuarial {(gain)/loss........... 21,512 21,005 (1,038) (2,171)
Unrecognized prior service cost ................. 1,615 1,883 (382) | (448)
Net amount recognized . .................on.... $ 5252 $ 5826 $(3,705) $(7,409)

The amount recognized in our consolidated
balance sheet consists of the following:

Pension/postretirement liability ................. $(17,875) $(17,062) $(3,705) $(7,409)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss........... 21,512 21,005 — —
Intangible asset. ............. ..ot 1,615 1,883 — —
Net amount recognized ........................ $ 5252 $ 5826 $(3,705) $(7,409)
Assumptions:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine
net benefit costs:

Discount rate .........c.ciiiiiuiiininreeennn. 6.0% 6.5% 7.25% 60% 65% 7.25%
Expected return on plan assets . ................. 8.5% 85% 9.00% — — —
Average rate of compensation increase ........... N/A 3.0% 3.50% — — —

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine
benefit obligations at year end:

Discount rat€ .........c.ooviiiiiineenieeennn.. 60% 60% 65% 60% 60% 6.5%
Average rate of compensation increase ........... N/A N/A 30% N/A — —

The most significant elements in determining our pension income or expense in accordance with
FAS 87 are the expected return on plan assets and the discount rate. We assumed an expected long-term
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rate of return on plan assets of 8.5 percent for the years ended December 31, 2004 and December 31,
2003. The assumed long-term rate of return on assets was developed after evaluating input from our third
party pension plan investment advisor. The evaluation included their review of asset return expectations
and long-term inflation assumptions. This long-term rate of return on assets is applied to a calculated value
of plan assets, which recognizes changes in the fair value of plan assets. This produces the expected return
on plan assets that is included in the determination of our pension income or expense. The difference
between this expected return and the actual return on plan assets is deferred. The net deferral of past asset
gains or losses affects the calculated value of plan assets and, ultimately, our future pension income or
expense. Should our long-term return on plan assets either fall below or increase above 8.5 percent, our
future pension expense would either increase or decrease. The historic rate of returns for our pension plan
assets are as follows:

(0 1T TV OO NP 11.5%
L A ¥ 5.3%
NS (0 - O 11.0%

Qur pension plan asset and our target allocation are as follows:
2004 2005 Target

Asset Category
EqQUItY SeCUIteS . .. ittt e it e e 57% 55%
Fixed InCOmME. . ..ottt e e e e e e e e e 43% 45%

Our pension plan investment strategy includes the maximization of return on pension plan investment,
at an acceptable level of risk, assuring the fiscal health of the plan and achieving a long-term real rate of
return which will equal or exceed the expected return on plan assets. To achieve these objectives, we
invest in a diversified portfclio of asset classes consisting of U.S. domestic equities, international equities,
and high quality and high yield domestic fixed income funds.

As of December 31, 2004, our pension plan investments were diversified as-follows:

(In millions)

Investments

Large Cap EqUIIES . ..ottt e e e $21.6
Small cap SqUITIES . .. ..ttt it i i 10.9
International EQUILIES . . .. .o vt v ettt et e e e 6.5
High yield bonds . ... ..ooiii i i e e 5.3
Fixed income/bond investments. . ... ...t iiin it i 243
L -]« 2
1 1 AP $68.8
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As of December 31, 2004, our estimated future benefit payments reflecting future service for the fiscal
years ending December 31 were as follows:

Retirement Plan Hourly Supplemental
for Salaried Employees Executive
Employees Retirement Plan Retirement Plan Postretirement
(In millions)

2005. . $1.5 $1.0 $.3 $4
2006 ... .. e 1.7 1.1 3 3
2007 ..o 1.9 1.3 3 3
2008 . ... . 2.1 1.4 3 2
2009 ... ... 2.3 1.6 3 2
2010-2014 ........ ..ol 15.3 11.3 1.6 11

Net periodic pension and postretirement benefit (income) costs from continuing operations for the
plans, exclusive of gains and losses from freezing and curtailing pension and postretirement plans, includes
the following components:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

Components of net periedic (income) cost

Service Cost ..ot $ 834 §$ 771 $1473 3§ 58 $§ 60 $ 120
Interest cost........coviiiiininnnennnn, 4,877 4,624 4,459 215 289 432
Expected return on plan assets ............. (5,832) (5,760)  (5,715) — — —
Amortization of prior service cost........... 268 268 836 (65) (65) (106)
Recognized net actuarial (gain) ............ 858 159 — (246)  (246) (195)
Amortization of transition obligation ........ — (107) (123) — — —
Net periodic (income) cost................ $1,0056 $§ (455 $ 930 $ (38) $ 38 § 251

Our projected benefit obligation or PBO, accumulated benefit obligation or ABO and fair value of
plan assets for our plans that have accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets are as follows:
2004 2003
PBO ABO Plan Assets PBO ABO Plan Assets
(In millions)

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. . ... $31 $31 $ — $34 §$34 $ —
Hourly Employees Retirement Plan of Nashua

Corporation. . .....vvvvneeiieenannn.. $36.3  $36.3 $31.0 $33.7  $33.7 $29.0
Retirement Plan for Salaried Employees of

Nashua Corporation .................... $47.3 $473 $37.8 $44.7  $44.7 $35.6

Assumed health care cost trend rates for us have a significant effect on the amounts reported for our
health care plan. Our assumed health care cost trend rate is 7 percent for 2005 and ranges from 7 percent
to 4 percent for future years. A one percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would
have the following effects:

1-Percentage 1-Percentage
Point Increase  Point Decrease

{In thousands)

Effect on total of service and interest cost components ........... $ 11 $ (10)
Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation .......... $118 $(109)
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Our annual measurement dates for our pension benefits and postretirement benefits are December 31.

Approximately $17.9 million and $17.1 million of our accrued pension cost and $3.7 million and
$7.4 million of our accrued postretirement benefits for 2004 and 2003, respectively, are included in other
long-term liabilities in our accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Intangible pension assets of
$1.6 million and $1.9 million for 2004 and 2003, respectively, are included in other assets in our
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. We do not expect to make a contribution to either our hourly or
salaried pension plans in 2005.

During the fourth quarters of 2004 and 2003, we recorded non-cash charges of $.3 million and
$1.3 million, respectively, to shareholders’ equity because as of December 31, 2004 and December 31,
2003, the accumulated benefit obligations exceeded the fair value of plan assets of company-sponsored
pension plans due to increases in our benefit obligation exceeding the increase in fair value of plan assets
in 2004 and decreases in our expected return on plan assets and discount rate resulting from current
economic trends in 2003. The charges for 2004 and 2003 were net of $.2 million and $.9 million,
respectively, in taxes which are included in other assets and reflect increases in our deferred tax assets.

In October 2004, we made a $2.4 million premium payment to Minnesota Life, a subsidiary of
Securian Financial Group, for it to assume the liability for, and the administration of, our death benefit
payments related to approximately 580 of our retirees. During the third quarter of 2004, we recognized a
$.9 million non-cash pretax gain related to the transfer to Minnesota Life.

In October 2002, our Board of Directors approved changes to The Nashua Corporation Retirement
Plan for Salaried Employees, The Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and retiree medical and death
benefit plens. As a result of these changes, we recognized a gain of $2.7 million related to the elimination
of certain benefits related to our retiree medical and death benefit plans and a gain of $.2 million from the
buy out of a portion of existing retirees’ death benefits, partially offset by a loss of $2.7 million related to
freezing benefits of the salaried pension plans. During 2003, the unions in New Hampshire objected to the
elimination of the availability of certain postretirement health benefits to certain union employees. A
grievance was filed by the unions and an arbitration hearing was held. The arbitrator ruled in favor of the
unions and we have appealed the arbitrator’s decision. In December 2003, we recognized a loss of
$1.6 million related to our union retiree medical plans. '

Note 13: Information About Operations
We have three reportable segments:

(1) Label Products: which converts, prints and sells pressure sensitive labels and tags to
distributors and end-users.

(2) Specialty Paper Products: which coats and converts various converted paper products sold
primarily to domestic converters and resellers, end-users and private-label distributors. Our Specialty
Paper segment’s product scope includes thermal papers, bond papers, carbonless paper, specialty
printed papers, such as financial receipts and point-of-sale receipts, wide-format media papers, dry-
gum papers, heat seal papers, small rolls and ribbons.

(3) Imaging Supplies: which produces and sells copier supplies (primarily toner and developer)
to distributors, value-added resellers and end-users.

The accounting policies of our segments are the same as those described in Note 1: “Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies”. Segment data does not include restructuring and other unusual items,
and we do not aliocate all corporate costs and assets to our divisions. We evaluate the performance of our
segments and allocate resources to them based on pretax income before restructuring and other unusual
items.
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Our Specialty Paper Products segment was a major supplier of thermal roll stock to our Label
Products segment through the third quarter of 2001. Eliminations represent sales between our Specialty
Paper Products and Label Products segments. Excluding sales between segments, reflected as eliminations
in the table below, external sales for our Specialty Paper Products segment were $162.8 million,
$163.6 million and $158.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Sales between segments and between geographic areas are negotiated based on what we believe to be
market pricing.

We have one group of customers under common contro! that represents ten percent or more of our
consolidated revenues. Combined sales to Wal-Mart and Sam’s Club totaled $33.1 million in 2004, or
11 percent of total sales for 2004, representing sales of $20.5 million for our Specialty Paper Products
segment and $12.6 million for our Label Products segment. While no other customer represented ten
percent of our consolidated revenues, each of our segments has significant customers. The loss of a
significant customer could have a material adverse effect on us or our segments.

Our reportable segments are strategic business units grouped by product class. We manage them
separately because each business requires different technology and marketing strategies.

The table below presents information about our reported segments for the years ended December 31:

Income (Loss) Before

Net Sales Income Taxes Identifiable Assets
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
(In millions)
By Reportable Segment:
Label Products ............. $104.3 $101.8 $1008 $ 7.6 $ 58 $ 55 $485 $ 482 $ 413
Specialty Paper Products . .. .. 168.0 1690 160.7 6.2 4.4 6.5 67.5 63.9 66.7
Imaging Supplies............ 22.1 23.5 24.0 (2) 4 .9 11.0 12.5 13.5
Reconciling Items:
Eliminations.............. (52) (54 (4 — — — — — —
Other(1) ................ — — .1 — — — — — —
Unallocated corporate
expenses and assets. ... .. — — — (74) (7.6) (79 240 271 24.7
Interest expense, net....... — — —  (LO) (L.3) (L5) — — —
Net gain on
curtailment/freeze of
pension/postretirement
plans .................. — — — 1.0 (1.6) 2 — — —
Restructuring and other
unusual items. .......... — — — — 1 1 — — —
Consolidated ........... $289.2 $2889 $283.2 $62 § .2 § 3.8 $151.0 $151.7 $146.2

(1) Includes activity from operations which falls below the quantitative thresholds for a reportable
segment.
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Capital expenditures and depreciation and amortization by reportable segment are set forth below for
the years ended December 31:
Depreciation &
Capital Expenditures Amortization
W04 2003 200 W04 2002 2003
(In millions)

Label Products .. ..ovvviiiiiiiineennens $2.1  $22 $1.8 $25 $24 %22
Specialty Paper Products. ....................... 39 1.0 1.6 37 3.8 3.6
Imaging Supplies ..o 4 4 S 1.3 1.4 1.5
Reconciling Items:
COmporate ....vcvviii i i e 2 7 4 4 3 _3
Comsolidated . ..........cooveiiiiiniennn.. $6.6 $4.3 $43 $79 $79 $76

Il
|

The following is information by geographic area as of and for the years ended December 31:
Net Sales from
Continuing Operations Long-Lived Assets
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
(In millions)

By Geographic Area

United States ..........ooinnnn.., $289.2  $288.9 $283.2 $75.3 $79.0 $78.7
Reconciling Items:
Discontinued Operations . ............ — — — 9 9 .9
Deferred tax assets.................. — — — 9.5 11.4 10.2
Consolidated . .................... $285.2 $288.9 $283.2 $857 $91.3 $89.8

Net sales from continuing operations by geographic area are based upon the geographic location from
which the goods were shipped and not the customer location.
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Note 14: Quarterly Operating Results (Unaudited)

Our quarterly operating results based on our use of 13-week periods are as follows:

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
(In millions, except per share data)
2004 \
Netsales ...t $71,232  $72,625 $72,120 $73,240  $289,217
Gross margin ..........oooiiiiian. 13,945 13,613 13,780 12,534 53,872
Netincome ........ccvvivreninnn.. 931 941 1,669 246 3,787
Earnings per common share ......... .16 .16 .28 .04 .63
Market price: h
High ...... ST 9.04 9.75 11.20 11.65 11.65
Low..... e e 8.20 8.25 9.09 10.23 8.20
2003(1) .
Net sales ..... P $67,193  $72,431 $74,075  $75,207 $288,906
"Gross margin . ........ e 12,598 13,421 14,024 13,762 53,805
Net income (loss)(2) .............. 176 118 697 (889) 102
Earnings (loss) per common share(2) .03 .02 A2 (.15) 02
Market price:
High............. ... oo 9.02 9.48 9.50 9.08 9.50
Low. ..o 8.65 8.73 6.75 7.93 6.75

(1) We acquired the operations assets of The Label Company from Bunzl Distribution in February 2003,
as described in Note 2. The operations of The Label Company have been included in our quarterly
operating results since the date of acquisition.

(2) Our fourth quarter includes restructuring income of $68,000 resulting from a net reduction to
previously established reserves and a loss of $1.6 million resulting from the adjustment to the
curtailment of postretirement plans of our union employees located in New Hampshire, as described
in Notes 2 and 12, respectively.

Note 15: Common Stock Information

Our stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol “NSH.” At
December 31, 2004, there were 887 record holders of our common stock.
Note 16: Related Parties

Leases with Related Parties

We rent property and did lease equipment under leases with entities partially owned by either a family
partnership of which our Chief Executive Officer and his family have total interest or by our Chief
Executive Officer. Associated with these leases, we incurred rent expense of approximately $.2 million
" during 2004, 2003 and 2002. We also pay taxes and utilities and insure property occupied under these
leases. :

In December 2003, our Board of Directors approved the purchase of equipment previously leased
from a related party. Subsequently, we purchased the equipment and will no longer incur lease expense on
the equipment.
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Notes Payable to Related Parties

We have a note payable to one of our executive officers and two notes payable to Nashua employees
as discussed in detail in Note 6.

Loans to Related Parties

We had loans to our Chief Executive Officer and have a loan to a former owner of Rittenhouse Paper
Company and current consultant to Nashua relating to life insurance premiums paid on their behalf. These
loans are partially collateralized by the cash surrender value of related life insurance policies and fully
covered by the death benefit payable under these policies. These loans do not incur interest and are due
upon death, settiement or termination of related life insurance policies. At December 31, 2004 and 2003,
loans of $1.0 million and $1.2 million, respectively, are included in other assets in our Consolidated
Balance Sheet. Below is a summary of related party loan activity: -

Chief Other

Executive Related
Officer Party Total

{In thousands)

Acquired upon acquisition of Rittenhouse Paper Company on

Aprl 17,2000 . .. .o o e $ 160 $195 $ 355
Net premiums paid in 2001 ......... ... ... i, 154 214 368
Net premiums paid in 2002 ......... .. ... oo ool — 250 250
Net premiums paid in 2003 ...... ... ... o o i i i — 235 235
Net premiums paid in 2004 ........... . ... i — 63 63
Settlement of obligation (see below) ........................... (314) — (314)
Balance at December 31,2004 ....................... e $§ 0 $957 § 957
Collateralized cash surrender value of life insurance policies ... .. .. $ 0 $813  § 813

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we incurred a one-time $330,000 charge related to the settlement of
future obligations under an employment contract in which we were required to fund a split dollar life
insurance policy on behalf of our Chief Executive Officer, Andrew Albert. As part of the agreement,
Mr. Albert repaid $313,679 for insurance premiums previously paid by us.
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Balance at
Previous
End of Year Additions

SCHEDULE I

Deductions

(In thousands)

DECEMBER 31, 2004:

Allowance for doubtful accounts ............. $ 861 $105(a)
Valuation allowance on state net operating loss
carryforwards ........ ...t $ 600 $ —
DECEMBER 31, 2003:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ............. $ 677 $432(a)
Valuation allowance on state net operating loss
carryforwards ....... ... $ 600 —
DECEMBER 31, 2002:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ............. $1,241 $411(a)
Valuation allowance on state net operating loss
carryforwards ........... oo i $1,885 $ —

(a) Includes recoveries and amounts charged to costs and expenses.
(b) Includes accounts deemed uncollectible.
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$ (312)(b)
$ —

$ (248)(b)

$ (975)(b)

$(1,285)

Balance at
End of Year

$654

$600

$861

$600

$677

$600




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Nashua Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Nashua Corporation as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. Our audits also
included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and
schedule are the responsibility of the company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted cur audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Nashua Corporation at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Manchester, New Hampshire
February 4, 2005
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

1. Our Company’s management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief
financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31,
2004. The term “disclosure controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under
the Exchange Act, means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the
SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and
procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it
files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company’s
management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no
matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives
and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible
controls and procedures. Based on their evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer
concluded that as of December 31, 2004, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the
reasonable assurance level, '

2. No change in our internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2004 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Othker information

None.

PART IIX

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
Directors

The information required by this Item with respect to directors will be included in our definitive
Proxy Statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held cn May 4, 2005, and is incorporated
herein by reference.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this Item with respect to our executive officers is contained in Part I of
this Form 10-K.

Code of Ethics

The information required by this Item with respect to code of ethics will be included in our definitive
Proxy Statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 4, 2005, and is incorporated
herein by reference. In accordance with Item 406 of Regulation S-K, a copy of our code of ethics is
available on our website at www.nashua.com under the “Corporate Governance” section of the “Investor
Relations” web page. We intend to make all required disclosures concerning any amendments to, or
waivers from, our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics on our Internet website.
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NYSE Corporate Governance Listing

As of May 2004, we have filed our annual certification to the NYSE that our CEO is not aware of
any violation by us of the NYSE corporate governance listing standards.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item will be included in our definitive Proxy Statement for our
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 4, 2005, and is incorporated herein by reference. The
information specified in Item 402(k) and (1) of Regulation S-K and set forth in our definitive Proxy
Statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders tc be held on May 4, 2005 is not incorporated by
reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this Item will be included in our definitive Proxy Statement for our
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 4, 2005, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item will be included in our definitive Proxy Statement for our
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 4, 2005, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principel Accountent Fees and Services

The information required by this Item will be included in our definitive Proxy Statement for our
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 4, 2005, and is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 1S. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are included in Item 8 of Part I of this Form 10-K:
(1) Financial statements:

o Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the three years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002

o Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003

> Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for each of the three years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 .

> Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002

o Noies to Consolidated Financial Statements
> Report of Independent Auditors
(2) Financial statement schedule:

o Schedule IT — Valuation and qualifying accounts for each of the three years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

The financial statement schedule should be read in conjunction with our financial statements included
in Item 8 of Part II of this Form 10-K. All other schedules have been omitted as they are not applicable,
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not required, or the information is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes to the
consolidated financial statements,

2.01

3.01

3.02

4.01

4.02

4.03

4.04

4.05

4.06

4.07

+10.01

+10.02

+10.03

+10.04

+10.05*

+10.06*

+10.07*

+10.08*

+10.09

(3) Exhibits:

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 25, 2002, between Nashua Corporation and
Nashua MA Corporation. Incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement filed on
March 27, 2002.

Articles of Organization, as amended. Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 28, 2002,

By-laws, as amended. Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 28, 2002.

Credit Agreements, dated March 1, 2002 by and among Nashua Corporation, LaSalle Bank, NA
and Fleet National Bank. Incorporated by reference to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 14, 2002.

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of July 15, 2003, by and among Nashua
Corporation, Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank National Association. Incorporated by
reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 27, 2003.

Waiver and Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of July 24, 2003, by and among
Nashua Corporation, Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank National Association. Incorporated by
reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 27, 2003.

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of September 25, 2003, by and among Nashua
Corporation, Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank National Association. Incorporated by
reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 26, 2003.

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of December 30, 2003, by and among Nashua
Corporation, Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank National Association. Incorporated by
reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of March 31, 2004 by and among Nashua
Corporation, Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank National Association. Incorporated by
reference to our current report on Form 8-K dated March 31, 2004 and filed April 2, 2004.

Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of December 1, 2004 by and among Nashua
Corporation, Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank National Association. Incorporated by
reference to our current report on Form 8-K dated December 9, 2004 and filed December 15, 2004.
Amended and Restated 1987 Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997,

Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 2, 1999.

1999 Shareholder Value Plan. Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended April 2, 1999,

2004 Value Creation Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement dated
March 23, 2004.

Change of Control and Severance Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2004 between Nashua
Corporation and Andrew B. Albert.

Change of Control and Severance Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2004 between Nashua
Corporation and John L. Patenaude.

Change of Control and Severance Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2004 between Nashua
Corporation and Thomas R. Pagel.

Change of Control and Severance Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2004 between Nashua
Corporation and Margaret S. Adams.

Change of Control and Severance Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2000 between Nashua
Corporation and Robert S. Amrein. Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2000.
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Change of Control and Severance Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2000 between Nashua
Corporation and Donna J. DiGiovine. Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999.

Management Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2003.

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Nashua Corporation and its directors and executive
officers. Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 27, 2002.

Deferred Compensation Agreement dated as of December 23, 1996 between Rittenhouse Paper
Company and Thomas R. Pagel. Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2000.

Master Agreement dated as of July 2, 2001, between Nashua Corporation and the Fasson Roll
North America division of Avery Dennison Corporation. Incorporated by reference to our Current
Report on Form 8-K dated July 9, 2001 and filed on July 12, 2001.

Named executive 2005 salaries.
Non-employee director compensation.

Code of Ethics. Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
Consent of Emst & Young LLP.

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, dated March 15, 2005.

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, dated March 15, 2005.

Certificate of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, dated March 15, 2005.

Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, dated March 15, 2003.

* _. Filed herewith.

+ — Identifies exhibits constituting management contracts or compensatory plans or other arrangements
required to be filed as an exhibit to this Annuval Report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized. '

NasHUA CORPORATION

By: /s/  JOHN L. PATENAUDE

JOHN L. PATENAUDE
Vice President-Finance and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 18, 2005

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title ‘ Date

/s/ ANDREW B. ALBERT

Andrew B. Albert

/s/ JOHN L. PATENAUDE

John L. Patenaude

/s/ MARGARET M. CALLAN

Margaret M. Callan

/s/  AVRUM GRAY

Avrum Gray

/s/ MARK E. SCHWARZ

Mark E. Schwarz

/s/ L. SCOTT BARNARD

L. Scott Barnard

/s/  GEORGE R. MRKONIC, JR.

George R. Mrkonic, Jr.

/s/_ JAMES F. ORR III

James F. Orr 111

Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)
Vice President-Finance and
Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)
Corporate Controller and
Chief Accounting Officer
(principal accounting officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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March 18, 2005




Corporate Information

Corporate Headquarters

11 Trafalgar Square, Suite 201
Nashua, New Hampshire 03063
Telephone: (603) 880-2323
Facsimile: (603) 880-5671
Internet: www.nashua.com

Stock Listing
Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange under the trading symbol NSH.

Shareholder Relations
To receive further information about Nashua
Corporation, please contact:

John L. Patenaude

Vice President-Finance,

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Nashua Corporation

11 Trafalgar Square, Suite 201
Nashua, New Hampshire 03063
Telephone: (603) 880-2145
Facsimile: (603) 880-2633

Form 10-K and Other Reports

Our Annual Report, Form 10-K and quarterly Form
10-Qs are available on our website at www.nashua.com.
In addition, copies of these reports, as well as our
corporate capabilities brochure, may be obtained without
charge upon request to:

Shareholder Relations

Nashua Corporation

11 Trafalgar Square, Suite 201
Nashua, New Hampshire 03063
Telephone: (603) 880-2145
Facsimile: (603) 880-2633

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Annual Meeting

Our Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at
8:00 a.m. on May 4, 2005 at the Company’s offices,
11 Trafalgar Square, Suite 201, Nashua, New
Hampshire.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company (AST) is the
Transfer Agent and Registrar of our common stock and
maintains shareholder accounting records. Inquiries
regarding lost certificates, consolidation of accounts,
changes in address, name or ownership, and other
shareholder account matters should be addressed to:

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane, Plaza Level

New York, NY 10038

Telephone: 800-937-5449

Email: info@amstock.com
www.amstock.com

Independent Auditors

Emst & Young LLP

Two Wall Street

Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Our 2004 Annual Report contains forward-looking statements, as that term is defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995, For this purpose, any statements contained herein that are not statements of historical fact may be deemed to be

forward-looking statements. Without limiting the foregoing, the words “anticipate,” “believe,

[LIRY3]

“expect,” “intend,” “may,

LU 5%

plan,

2 & 2

can,” “could,” “estimate,”

project,” “should,” “will,” and other similar expressions, when used in this 2004 Annual

Report, are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements represent management’s current
expectations and are inherently uncertain. Examples of such areas containing forward-looking statements used in this Annual
Report include discussions and risks relating to assumption on markets and competitors; tax, environmental, and litigation
matters; and the expectations for company activities in 2005. Such forward-looking statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by our forward-looking statements. Such
risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, our future capital needs and resources, fluctuations in customer demand,
intensity of competition from other vendors, timing and acceptance of our new product introductions, delays or difficulties in
programs designed to increase sales and improve profitability, general economic and industry conditions, stock market
conditions, the price of our stock and other risks and uncertainties set forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31, 2004 and our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The information set forth in this
Annual Report should be read in light of such risks. While we may elect to update forward-looking statements at some point in
the future, we specifically disclaim any obligation to do so, even if our expectations change.
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